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Our pillars of strength are the
long-established brand name,
the solidity of our togetherness
and our ability to move forward
courageously. These are the
pillars that have enabled us to
successfully continue all our
business operations without
interruption during times of
uncertainty. It is the stability
established through these
pillars that is our foremost
fortification against all odds.
Moving forward in these
pressing times we continue
to reinforce our stability while
ushering the sustainable growth
of our Company.
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Vision

To be the preferred choice of
the discerning customer for
products and services in the
construction industry.

Mission

Manufacture and provide
products and services of
consistent quality and reliability
for the construction industry.
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Key Performance
Highlights
Revenue
Rs. 3.2 Bn.
Profit Before Tax

Rs. 262.9 Mn.
Profit After Tax

Rs. 193.9 Mn.

Synopsis
Performance
during the Year

This financial year recorded the best financial performance since the
inception of the Company in terms of both the revenue and profits. Revenue
grew up to Rs. 3.2 billion with our profits before tax amounting to Rs. 262.9
million for the financial year compared to Rs. 177 million in the previous year.
The Company’s profit after tax also increased to Rs.193.9 million compared to
Rs. 129.4 million recorded in the previous year.

Dividends

The first and final dividend of Rs. 4/- per share where Rs. 2/- per share
will be a scrip Dividend & Rs. 2/- per share will be a cash dividend has
been recommended by the directors for the year ended 31st March 2020,
compared to Rs. 2.50 per share in the previous year.

Product Portfolio

In keeping with the company’s vision “to be the preferred choice of the
discerning customer for products and services in the construction industry”
customer centricity remains at the forefront of product development. Our
flagship brands include National PVC and Krypton.
We have a range of products under the ‘National’ PVC brand name that
includes uPVC pipes and fittings, accessories, water tanks, sewerage
and drainage pipes and fittings, electrical casings, conduits, flexible
conduits, garden hose, ball valves, rainwater management products, roofing
accessories, and solvent cement. The new products, the single handle ball
valves and coloured garden hoses were added to our product portfolio,
under the National PVC brand name, during the year under review. We are
one of the first amongst the PVC manufacturing Companies to obtain SLS
certification from the Sri Lanka Standards Institute.
Our electrical range, namely the ‘Krypton’ electrical switches and sockets
are manufactured in Sri Lanka with stringent quality standards including
SLS standards and, local and international safety standards. This product
category includes a range of switches and sockets, namely, Wide Dolly
switches and sockets, MCB’s, RCCB’s, Isolators, and other range of
accessories. The pioneer range was specially introduced to provide
customers with increased options.
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Human
Resources

Our human resource policy is aimed at recruiting the right skills and talents
to our workforce while strengthening their existing competencies through
exposure to numerous training and development opportunities to deliver the
best performance. We have consistently focused on building loyalty, integrity
and competency amongst all employees and strive to prepare them for the
next level of operational excellence.
Our staff includes employees from all backgrounds and comprise of multiethnic and multi religious members from all the regions of the country.
We continuously endeavour to motivate and enhance the morale of our
employees through team building and employee motivation initiatives as
well as timely rewards and recognition based on their performance. We also
strengthened our human resource management processes by putting in
place a modern and up-to-date human resource information system together
with an in-house developed IT system for efficient people and compensation
management.
We comply with all governing statutes of the Country and ensures equal
opportunities for all employees adopting non-discriminatory policies in all
our processes. We also do not maintain any type of child labour, underage
employment or forced labour or any form of unfair or unethical labour
practices.

Marketing and
Promotion

We reach the National PVC customer through our widespread dealer network
and dedicated sales staff including Marketing Managers, Sales Managers,
Area Sales Managers and Sales representatives and which we strive to
deliver to a large customer base that is dispersed across the country.
We carried out marketing and promotional activities for both National PVC
pipes and fittings, as well as in the electrical segment, largely focusing on
Below the Line (BTL) activities. The activities include increasing the visibility
in the market through outdoor hoarding campaigns dealer boards, and
merchandising inside dealer shops, and point of sales materials provided to
dealers.
Plumbing workshops were also carried out to uplift the plumber’s professional
knowledge and skills.
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Chairman’s Review
Dear Shareholders,
On behalf of the Board of Directors,
it is my pleasure to present the
Annual Report and the Audited
Financial Statements of Central
Industries PLC for the financial year
2019/20. I am pleased to report
that the Company demonstrated
an impressive performance during
the year, recording the best ever
revenue and profitability since its
inception.
AN IMPRESSIVE
PERFORMANCE
The Sri Lankan economy
witnessed a moderate growth of
2.3 % compared to the 3.3% in the
previous year. It was challenged
by the Easter Sunday attacks that
adversely reverberated across
all the sectors slowing down
most key economic activities.
However, the construction sector
rebounded during the latter part
of the year growing by 4% mainly
due to the completion of largescale construction projects such
as extension of the Southern
Expressway and the Outer Circular
Highway, the rapid progress of the
Central Expressway project ahead
of the Presidential Election, as
well as construction work related
to condominium development
projects. In spite of this, delays
in payment for government
related projects gave rise to
serious financial constraints for
construction firms, which in turn
negatively contributed to the
progress of the overall construction
industry. Consequently, most
entities that cater to the
construction industry struggled to
maintain financial stability during
the latter part of the year.
We were able to meet the financial
targets set for the financial year by
proactive response strategies to
business challenges faced during
of the year except for those arising
due to the COVID 19 Pandemic
Despite the volatile nature of the
economy of the country, we were
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able to achieve a revenue of Rs.
3.2 Billion representing a growth
rate of 15% over the previous year,
while profits before tax amounted
to Rs. 262.9 Million for the financial
year compared to Rs.177 Million in
the previous year. The Profit after
Tax increased to Rs.193.9 Million
compared to Rs.129.4 Million in
the previous year.
DIVIDENDS
The Board is pleased to
recommend a first and final
dividend of Rs. 4/- per share
where Rs. 2/- will be a Scrip
Dividend for the year ended 31st
March 2020 compared to Rs. 2.50
per share in the previous year.
The entire ordinary dividends
will be paid out of the profits
for the year ending 31st March
2020 of the Company. Our
Auditors, M/S KPMG, Chartered
Accountants have confirmed
that this distribution satisfies the
solvency test requirement of the
Companies’ Act No.7 of 2007 and
a Certificate to this effect has been
obtained. The dividend will be
paid within forteen working days
of the AGM following the approval
of the Shareholders.
STRATEGIC APPROACH
Despite many challenges,
we proactively managed the
implementation of our planned
strategies which resulted in notable
gains in both the retail market and
the construction contractor sector.
Methodologies to quickly identify
market opportunities and rapidly
develop appropriate responses
were successfully adopted.
Widening our customer base was
one of the key strategies that has
now become extremely important
to maintain sustainability and
stability of operations during the
COVID -19 Pandemic.
Large-scale construction sector
projects were heavily affected
throughout the year due to the

financial constraints faced by
government funded projects
and as a result of very few new
projects being implemented during
the year. Hence, One of our key
efforts was to cultivate professional
relationships with key personnel in
both the water management and
electrical products segments. This
professional approach helped us to
secure large-scale foreign-funded
water supply to these projects.
The ability to mass supply large
projects, combined with the trust
we have nurtured over the years
through our persistent efforts
to maintain service excellence,
reliability of our products, and
professional approach, has
facilitated the impressive growth of
our business during the financial
year.
Furthermore, improved avenues of
supply chain management have
resulted in enhanced monetary
returns.
IMPROVED BRAND VISIBILITY
The Company’s consistent pursuit
to improve brand visibility through
below-the-line marketing made it
possible to pay dividends. Pointof-sale marketing to a wider range
of dealers enabled us to reach
geographical locations that were
not previously covered.
The campaigns approach to uplift
the professionalism of plumbers
and electricians have resulted in
customer satisfaction where our
high quality products combined
with trained craftsmen contributed
gratefully to the satisfaction of the
end consumer.
During the year under review,
we also embarked on a range of
marketing initiatives with a view
to achieve better penetration into
the dealer market. Besides the
Company introduced HDPE (High
Density Polyethylene) pipes - a
new range for the next generation,
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with state-of-the-art manufacturing
facilities certified by the Sri Lanka
Standards Institution and the
Water Regulations Advisory
Scheme -UK (WRAS). This
new product range is fully
operational and we can cater to
any requirement in the market.
The Company also launched new
products under our electrical
segment (Krypton) to cater to a
wider customer requirement.
RISKS AND MITIGATION
One of the key challenges we
faced during the year was the
fluctuating exchange rate that
severely affected the cost of raw
material, negatively impacting
our profit margins. Apart from
that, there were impediments
in the construction industry
due to macro-economic factors
compelling us to maintain
competitive pricing in the market.
Likewise, long delays in settlement
of payments in some projects
and the loss of revenue in the
final month of the year due to
the impact of COVID-19 had an
adverse impact on our revenue
achievement for the financial year.
However, we counteracted
these challenges by upholding
the quality and reliability of our
products, adhering to all the
required quality standards (SLS
certification, ISO certification,
WRAS UK certifications etc). Our
position was further strengthened
by research and development
efforts that ensure continuous
improvement in the quality of our
product range and our service
excellence. These factors have
been critical in maintaining our
market share.
SKILLED WORKFORCE
Our people being the backbone
of the Company’s success,
we have supported them
through continuous exposure to
learning and skills development
opportunities that have enabled

us to attract and retain the best
people with the right capabilities
at all levels of operation. Their
personal and professional
growth is further encouraged
through timely rewards and
recognition, fair remuneration,
employee welfare schemes and
strict compliance with the labour
regulatory by framework and
encouraging strong relationships
between management and
the employees. As an equal
opportunity provider, we have also
been mindful of ensuring gender
diversity in our workforce.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
We uphold the highest standards
of corporate governance by
complying with all applicable
regulations, regulatory directives
and encourage industry best
practices in all aspects of our
business operations. We strictly
adhere to all the guidelines issued
by the governing institutions of Sri
Lanka. This commitment to best
practices has further strengthened
our strategic, operational and
compliance risk management
capabilities.
A LOOK AHEAD
Moving ahead, we look forward to
seizing new opportunities as they
arise, having strengthened our
position by obtaining the required
certifications and other resources.
In the post COVID - 19 pandemic
era, procurement management
and market expansion remain
a critical challenge due to the
continuous uncertainty of the
macroeconomic environment.
Nonetheless, we are confident of
achieving sustainable progress
even with the challenges ahead
of us.
BOARD CHANGES
Mr. Ralph de Lanerolle, an
Independent Non-Executive
Director, retires on 30th June

2020 upon completing 9 years
of service as per corporate
governance requirement. On
behalf of the Management, I thank
Mr. Lanerolle sincerely for his
valuable contribution during his
tenure and wish him well in all his
future endeavours.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
In conclusion, I wish to express
my sincere gratitude to all our
customers who have placed their
trust in us and in our products
over the years, and to all our
distributors and dealers who have
supported us with their unrelenting
commitment towards our
marketing and distribution efforts.
I also wish to express my heartfelt
thanks to our Bankers, Auditors
and Company Secretaries for their
valuable service and assistance.
Our employees remain the
backbone of our success as it is
their commitment and dedication
that has ensured sustainable
progress. Therefore, I am deeply
indebted to all our staff who
remained with us through thick
and thin in good times as well
as during times of uncertainty.
A special note of appreciation
to our Chief Executive Officer Mr. Mayura Rupatunge for his
dedication and commitment and
to my colleagues on the Board for
their wise guidance and counsel.
Finally, and above all, my sincere
gratitude to all our shareholders
for the trust they have placed in us
and I assure you that as always,
your expectations and interests
will be in the forefront of our
business decision making.

(Sgd.)
G.S.N. Peiris
Chairman
Colombo
19th June 2020
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Board of Directors

G. S. N. Peiris
Chairman

Eranjith Wijenaike has served on
the Board of the Company as a
Non-Executive Director since its
inception. He is the Managing
Director of Central Finance
Company PLC, a leading nonbanking Financial Institution in

Newton
Wickramasuriya

Non-Executive Director
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Shamil Peiris has served on the
Board of the Company since its
inception. He was appointed as
Chairman on 26th July 2013. He
is also the Group Finance Director
of Central Finance Company
PLC, Chairman – CF Insurance
Brokers (Pvt) Ltd and serves on
the Boards of many companies
within the Group. He possesses
over 41 years of post-qualification
management experience. He is

the country and also a Director of
several other quoted companies
within and outside the Central
Finance Group. He holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce
and a Post Graduate Diploma in
Finance and Banking.

Newton Wickramasuriya retired
as the CEO of the Company in
October 2017 and is continuing
on the Board. He joined the
board in 1999. He holds a BSc
Engineering degree from the
University of Ceylon, Peradeniya
and is a Chartered Engineer in UK
and in Sri Lanka. He is a Fellow
of the Institution of Mechanical
Engineers (UK) and a Fellow of the

a Fellow Member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants
of Sri Lanka, Credit Institute
of Management – Sri Lanka,
Certified Professional Managers
– Sri Lanka, Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants – UK,
British Institute of Management
– UK, Association of Corporate
Treasurers – UK and a Chartered
Global Management Accountant.

Eranjith Harendra
Wijenaike
Non-Executive Director

Institution of Engineers, Sri Lanka.
He is also a past President of the
Institution of Engineers, Sri Lanka,
a past Chairman of the Ceylon
National Chamber of Industries,
and a past Chairman of Lanka
Hydraulic Institute Ltd. He has
served on the Boards of several
statutory bodies and counts over
46 years of experience in the
industry locally and internationally.
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Sarath De Costa

Non-Executive Director

Arjuna Gunaratne has served
on the Board of the Company
since 2006. He is also Director –
Group Co-ordination of Central
Finance Company PLC and
serves on the Boards of several

Ralph De Lanerolle

Independent
Non-Executive Director

Sarath De Costa was the Former
Counsel General for Sri Lanka in
Osaka, Japan. He was appointed
to the Board of Colombo Dockyard
PLC in 1993 and is the Chairman
and Managing Director of the
Amano and Tivoli Group of
Companies, President, Imperial
Trading Corporation, Japan, a
Director of Waters Edge Ltd and
Ceylon Shipping Agency (Pte) Ltd,
Singapore. He also serves as Vice
President of the Sri Lanka – Japan
Business Cooperation Committee,
and is a Life Member of the Japan
Sri Lanka Technical Co-operation

Companies within the Group. He
is a Fellow Member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of
Sri Lanka and of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accounts
of UK.

Ralph De Lanerolle has over 51
years of experience both in the
public and private sectors, holding
senior management positions. He
has worked primarily in the field of
Project Finance and Management,
undertaking assignments in
diverse sectors of the economy,
especially Financial Services,
Shipping & Ports, Tourism,
Property and Transportation.
A Chartered Engineer, he holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Civil

and a Member of the Sri Lanka
Japan Friendship Society.
He was a Representative – Board
of investment of Sri Lanka, Patron
– Department of Neurosurgery
Trust (National Hospital), Trustee
– National Health Development
Fund (Ministry of Health), Special
Envoy/Advisor – Board of
Investment of Sri Lanka, Member
of the Advisory Committee –
Ministry of Wild Life Resources
Conservation and a Director of
Industrial Development Board.

Arjuna Gunaratne
Non-Executive Director

Engineering (First Class Honours)
from the University of Ceylon
(1965) and a Master’s degree from
the University of Waterloo, Ontario,
Canada (1968). He is an Honorary
Life Member of the Institution of
Engineers, Sri Lanka.
Currently, he is the Executive
Director of Mireka Capital Land
(Pvt) Ltd, and has served, and
continues to serve, on the Boards
of several other private and public
listed companies.
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Board of Directors

Indranee Jayasinghe
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Indranee Jayasinghe is a
Fellow Member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants
of Sri Lanka. She holds a
Masters Degree from the
Harvard University, USA and
a Post Graduate Diploma in
State Enterprise & Economic
Development from ISS, The Hague,
Netherlands.
She was the Director General of
the Public Enterprises Department

Mr. Hettiarachchy was appointed
to the Board as an Independent
Non-Executive Director on
1st July 2017. He is a Chartered
Engineer and a Member of the
Institutions of Electrical Engineers
and Chemical Engineers. He is a
consultant to Sri Lanka Institute of
Nanotechnology and works as the
Chief of Process and Engineering
Systems. He serves on the Board
of Lankem Ceylon PLC and as
the Chairman on the Board of ISL
Services Limited.
He has served on the Board of
Hayleys PLC and functioned as
Managing Director on the Boards
of Haycarb PLC, Recogen Limited
and Puritas Limited.

Chaminda Sampath
Hettiarachchi
Non-Executive Director
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He has also served on the Boards
of several other subsidiaries of
Haycarb PLC and Hayleys PLC
both in Sri Lanka and overseas.
He was also a Board Member of
the Coconut Research Institute,
National Science Foundation
(NSF) and the Sri Lanka Institute
of Nanotechnology. A member
of the National Nanotechnology
Committee and a member of
several advisory Boards of
the NSF, Mr. Hettiarachchy
possesses expertise in the fields
of Process Design, Installation and
Commissioning of petrochemical
and other process plants,
Mechanical Engineering, Thermal
and Electrical Energy - Generation
and Storage and Nanotechnology.

of the Ministry of Finance and
was also the CEO of Commercial
Fund Management, a subsidiary
of the Commercial Bank. Later she
worked as senior tax advisor at
KPMG, Chartered Accountants and
is now a Partner of Jayasinghe &
Company, Chartered Accountants.
Mrs. Jayasinghe has served on the
Board of Directors of several Public
& Private Sector Corporations and
Companies.

Ariyawansa
Hettiarachchy

Independent
Non-Executive Director

C.S. Hettiarachchi was appointed
to the Board on 30th June 2018.
He is also the General Manager
(Legal) of Central Finance
Company PLC and serves as a
Director on three other Companies
within the Group. He holds
Bachelor of Laws (LL.B) Degree
from the University of Colombo
and an MBA from University of
Sri Jayawardenapura (PIM). He is
an Attorney-at-Law of the Supreme
Court of Sri Lanka.
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Product Profile &
Marketing Review

From the inception of the
Company we have consistently
endeavoured to build and
maintain a reputation as a reliable
supplier of quality products
amongst our customers and
other various stakeholders. This
reputation as a quality product
supplier has been fundamental to
our business success during the
year which was further enhanced
by our skilled and disciplined
sales force and the automated
business processes that were
utilised towards effective and
efficient service delivery.
FOCUS & OBJECTIVES

We primarily focus on two market
segments, namely, the retail dealer
and the professional construction
contractor market. Our products
are also segregated into two main
segments. The first is the “National
PVC”, our flagship brand of PVC
pipes and fittings, Polyethylene
pipes and fittings, Polypropylene
Random (PPR) pipes, and several
related products that cater to
the water management product
segment. The second is the
“Krypton” brand which includes
domestic electrical switches and
sockets, low voltage switch gear,
and other accessories that cater
to the electrical product segment.
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We made it a key marketing
objective to increase our share
in the PVC retail dealer market
during the year while focusing
on further improving our service
levels and reach in the construction
sector. Whereas in the electrical
products segment, our objective
was to achieve greater market
penetration through focused
market development activities.
The PVC retail dealer market
expansion was carried out through
trade marketing activities as well
as continuous below-the-line
activities to build relationships
with dealers and increase
awareness among consumers
and professionals. In addition,
we conducted targeted press
advertising campaigns, outdoor
hoarding campaigns, programs
for key dealers and workshops
for influencers. To increase
awareness amongst professionals,
we conducted workshops
for instructors who train the
plumbers in association with
the Construction Industry skills
Council.
Furthermore, strategies were
initiated specially in geographical
areas where our products are not
adequately represented. We also
conducted training sessions for
technical staff of key customers
which included product and
technical related training. These
initiatives were highly useful in
enhancing public awareness of
our “National PVC” and “National
PE” brands. Our skilled sales staff
with ample technical knowledge
greatly contributed to the success
of these two brand segments
during the year under review.

In our electrical segment, we
have concentrated on increasing
market penetration and have
carried out trade marketing
activities and measures to
increase visibility of the “Krypton”
brand. In 2019, the Public
Utilities Commission (PUCSL)
coordinated the introduction of
a single standard for 13 ampere
domestic electrical sockets.
Having fully complied with the
new requirements, we have
proceeded to create awareness
and educate dealers, electricians
and consumers on the benefits
and application of this standard.
The PUCSL is also in the process
of introducing a licensing scheme
for electricians and we are actively
involved in training and educating
such electricians to assist them in
enhancing their service quality to
the consumers.

We also carried out structural
changes and improvement to our
existing distribution channels while
enhancing our competitiveness
by introducing ‘Krypton Pioneer’
range of premium domestic
electrical switches and sockets
in a new colour selection to suit
customer requirements.
During the year, Central Industries
received an “Achiever award”
from the Ceylon National Chamber
of Industries in the Extra-large
category – manufacturing.
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PRODUCT PROFILE
We make every effort to uphold
our vision “to be the preferred
choice of the discerning customer
for products and services in the
construction industry”. To this end,
we constantly strive to deliver
customer satisfaction based on
the feedback obtained from our
customers.

National PE pipes and fittings is
another key product category
mainly used in high-end
applications. These pipes
are certified by the Sri Lanka
Standards Institute as well as by
the Water Regulations Advisory
Scheme (WRAS) from the UK.

National PVC
Under this flagship brand, we
market a range of products that
include PVC pipes and fittings,
accessories, water tanks,
sewerage and drainage pipes
and fittings, electrical casings,
conduits, flexible conduits, garden
hose, ball valves, rainwater
management products, roofing
accessories, and solvent cement.
During the year under review,
we introduced long handle ball
valves and garden hoses in
several different colours to the
market. Currently, our National
PVC ball valves are the only locally
manufactured ball valves in the
market.

Central Industries was the
first PVC pipe manufacturing
Company to obtain SLS 147
certification for PVC pipes from
the Sri Lanka Standards Institute
in 1987 and thus National PVC
became the benchmark for the
entire PVC industry as a pioneer
in achieving quality standards.
The Company was also the first to
achieve SLS certification SLS 659
for PVC fittings and the ISO 9002
quality system certification for its
manufacturing process. National
PVC offers a range of drainage
and sewerage PVC pipes
conforming to SLS standards and
offers a range of products for a
wide scale of applications from
domestic systems to complex high
rise buildings.

National PE offers a
comprehensive range of
polyethylene (PE) pressure
pipes designed for potable
water applications, as well as
for many other high-pressure
and low-pressure applications.
PE pipes are manufactured from
polyethylene resins supplied from
world-renowned resin suppliers
and manufactured to SLS 1498/
ISO 4427 standards. These pipes
are manufactured in our ISO 9001
– 2000 certified factory using
the latest technology, resulting in
high-quality polyethylene pipes,
thus providing the professionals
with a high-assurance system for
complex and advanced projects.
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Product Profile & Marketing Review

hoarding campaigns, dealer
boards, dealer merchandising
and etc.

Krypton Electrical
Krypton electrical switches
and sockets are manufactured
under stringent quality standards
and are certified by the SLSI
as complying with the requisite
standards. This category includes
a range of switches and sockets
and also includes a premium
range marketed under the brand
name, Krypton Pioneer. The range
also includes MCB’s, RCCB’s,
Isolators, and other accessories.
The Krypton Pioneer range was
introduced to provide high-end
consumers with aesthetically
pleasing designs.
Product lifetime safety features are
inbuilt into the design of all these
products.

PRODUCT PROMOTION
INITIATIVES
The Company carried out many
promotional activities during the
year for both PVC pipes and
fittings segment as well as for
the electrical segment. These
include increasing visibility in the
market, merchandising inside
dealer shops, and point-of-sale
material provided at dealer
outlets. Plumbing workshops
were carried out to improve the
professional knowledge and
skills of plumbers and empower
them to provide a better quality
of service to our customers. Our
product portfolio was showcased
through participating in exhibitions
targeting professionals, potential
influencers and the public.
During the year, we participated
in the highly recognised and
popular exhibition conducted
by the Institution of Engineers of
Sri Lanka where both our leading
brands were displayed.
Several visibility increasing drives
were carried out including outdoor
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Targeted advertising included
advertising in industry related
magazines such as Kedella,
Construction Industry Bulletin,
Urban Development Authority
publications and Sri Lanka
Institute of Architect publications.
Press releases were also issued
during new product launches to
create awareness.
We also engaged in digital
marketing activities to be in touch
with our customers and use many
of the social media platforms such
as Facebook, Twitter and Youtube.
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REACH & MARKETING
ACTIVITIES
We cater to the National PVC
retail customer segment through
our authorised agents across the
country where we operate with
distributors and committed sales
staff that includes senior level
managers and a dedicated, skilled
and professional sales team. This
disciplined marketing team and
our well-established automated
processes were advantageous in
achieving the sales targets during
the year. We have in place a
performance based rewards system
and continuously review the team to
ensure that they are clearly focused
on achieving their objectives.

Maintaining competitive pricing
without compromising product
quality is another important goal
we strive to achieve. Besides,
we also ensure that fair trading
practices and a high level
of integrity is maintained in
our business operations. The
Company was the first in the
industry to make a downward
revision of prices in support of the
government efforts following the
removal of Nation Building Tax and
the reduction of Value Added Tax.
To further improve our product
quality, we continue our ongoing
process of obtaining feedback from
the dealers and the end consumer.
The Company also works with
research agencies to obtain better
consumer insights about our
products and the services.
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Corporate Social
Responsibility

At Central Industries PLC (CIPLC),
we aim to be a more sustainable
Company by strengthening
stakeholder relationships, while
ensuring that our business
processes demonstrate best
practices within a sustainable
framework and by fulfilling social
and environmental responsibilities
towards society at large.
HUMAN CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT

The Human Capital Management
process of the Company is
planned and designed to recruit
the right mix of talent for the
right job and we have further
equipped them with appropriate
tools and skills to deliver their
best performance at workplace
thus reinforcing a conducive
work environment. Despite a
highly volatile labour market, we
have focused on building loyalty,
integrity and competency amongst
all employees and consistently
strive to prepare them for the next
level of operational excellence
while fostering harmonious
relations amongst several
generations of employees.
We streamlined our human
resource management processes
by implementing a modern and
up-to-date human resource
information system together with
other in-house developed IT
systems for efficient people and
compensation management.
We continuously endeavour
to motivate and enhance the
morale of our employees through

18

continuously organising events
and functions that encourages
team building and employee
motivation. The Employee Welfare
Society of the Company organises
various recreational activities to
bring the employees and their
families together thereby making
a conscious effort to improve
their quality of life, morale and
motivation.
The company also organised
a blood donation campaign in
collaboration with the Sri Lanka
Blood Bank of the Colombo
General Hospital during the
year. Almost all of the Company
employees participated in the
event, which contributed to a
precious social meet.

All our employees are also
provided with a Health & Safety
Insurance Scheme, in addition, to
setting up correct and preventive
mechanisms to protect them from
any form of harm at the workplace.

SOCIAL AND COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT
We concentrated on providing
basic infrastructure facilities
to support and strengthen
under-privileged sections of the
community, by installing drinking
water facilities, sanitary facilities,
lighting of places of worship,
as well as building renovation
and reconstruction for those
communities who have the
legitimate requirement for such
amenities. Our specific initiatives
include,
yy The provision of safe drinking
water systems to schools
and temples, where we
offered complete drinking
water systems for Mahanama
Vidyalaya, Kebillewela,
Bandarawela, sponsored
another for Puwakpitiya
Kanishta Vidyalaya, Matale
and donated a drinking water
system to Labunuruwa Aranya
Senasanya, Maradankadawala
for the benefit of resident and
visiting monks.
yy The establishment of drinking
water facilities for the pilgrims
in some of the cultural and
religious sites during festive
seasons. Consequently, water
tanks were placed in the Kandy
city during the Esala perahera
in collaboration with the Kandy
Municipal Council which we
have facilitated for over 10
years. In addition, we installed
water tanks for pilgrims in
Anuradhapura during the
Poson season in collaboration
with the Anuradhapura
Municipal Council; another
initiative we have carried out for
the past 10 years. Apart from
that, we provided the same
facilities for those who attended
the Ragama Basilica church
feast and the Thalavila church.
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yy Contributions towards the
construction of a new school
building at Hibutugollawa Maha
Vidyalaya, Hibutugollawa,
Galenbidunuwewa in
association with Company’s
Welfare Fund.

yy The donation of a complete
sanitary system for the
Warnagala Purana Viharaya in
Sri Pada (Adam’s Peak).
yy Sponsoring of the lighting of
temples during festive seasons.
These include sponsoring the
lighting of Warnagala Purana
Viharaya, Sri Pada (Adam’s
peak).
yy Sponsoring lighting
of the Warapalana Sri
Ginendraramaya, Warapalana,
Yakkala during annual Katina
Pinkama.
yy Sponsoring a program called
“Liya Saviya” in association
with the Mahara Pradeshiya
Sabhawa for entrepreneurial
women.
yy Sponsoring a medical clinic for
Women’s Day in association
with the Mahara Pradeshiya
Sabhawa.
ENVIRONMENTAL
SUSTAINABILITY
The company is conscious of
reducing the environmental impact
of our business operations in
ensuring the Company’s long-term
sustainability. The environmentally
conducive activities carried out
to support a healthier natural
environment include,
yy A tree planting campaign to
mark Worlds Environment Day.

yy Placing of information and
guidance boards for tourists
and visitors in the Kotamale
area in association with the
Kotamale Pradehsiya Sabhawa.
yy Placing of environment
protection signs at the
Maligathenna Raja Maha
Viharaya, Malwathuhiripitiya.
yy The use of natural lighting
for in-house activities at our
Yakkala factory as a part of our
programme to reduce power
consumption.
yy Installation of a water recycling
plant to reduce water usage.
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Corporate Governance
Corporate Governance (CG) is a framework of rules and practices by which an organisation is directed,
controlled and managed. The CG framework below provides an overview of the Corporate Governance
structures, principles, policies and practices of the Board of Directors of Central Industries PLC (CIPLC).

The Board of Directors

Board Appointed Committees

Remuneration
Committee

Related Party
Transactions
Review
Committee

Audit
Committee

Internal
Audit

Risk Management &
Control Functions

Streering
Committees
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 Credit Committee
 IT Steering Committee













Credit Risk
Market Risk
Operational Risk
Information Systems Risk
Reputational Risk
Internal Controls
Compliance Monitoring
Legal & Regulatory Requirements
Human Resource Management
Code of conduct
Sustainability Practices
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The Board of Directors of the
Company believes good corporate
governance is the cornerstone
of strong business performance.
Corporate governance policies
and practices of the Company
have been designed to ensure
that the Company is focused
on its responsibilities to its
stakeholders and on creating
long term shareholder value.
We continuously review and find
ways to improve our Board’s
effectiveness in this regard.
The Board is committed to ensure
that it complies with the specific
requirements under the rules set
out in Section 7.10 and section 9
of the Colombo Stock Exchange’s
Listing Rules. The table on page
22 to 24 set out the manner of
compliance with these rules. The
Board also recognises the Code
of Best Practice on Corporate
Governance issued jointly by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Sri Lanka and the Securities
and Exchange Commission as
useful guidance in improving
corporate governance.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board consisted of the
Non-Executive Chairman and
Eight Non-Executive Directors as
at 31st March 2020. The names
and profiles of the directors are
given on page 10 to 12.
Mr. A. Hettiarachchy, Mr. L.R. De
Lanerolle, and Ms. I.S. Jayasinghe
are Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

The Board met once in a calendar
quarter. Details of the meeting and
individual attendance are given
below.
Member

No. of
Meetings

Mr. G.S.N. Peiris
Mr. E.H. Wijenaike
Mr. A.N.P. Wickramasuriya
Mr. C.S.W. De Costa
Mr. L.R. De Lanerolle
Mr. A.K. Gunaratne
Ms. I.S. Jayasinghe
Mr. A. Hettiarachchy
Mr. C.S. Hettiarachchi

4
3
4
1
4
3
4
4
3

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee comprises
four Non-Executive Directors,
namely:
Mr. A. Hettiarachchy
Independent Non-Executive
Director
(Chairman of the Committee)

duties include detailed reviews of
the financial statements, internal
control procedures, accounting
policies, compliance with
accounting standards, emerging
accounting issues and such other
related functions as the Board
may require. It also recommends
the appointment and fees of the
external auditors. It also keeps
under review the independence
and objectivity of the external
auditors. The detailed Audit
Committee’s Report including
the areas reviewed during the
financial year 2019/20 is given
on page 25 and 26 of the Annual
Report.
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee
comprises of five non-executive
directors of which three are
independent directors.
Mr. G.S.N. Peiris
Non-Executive Director
(Chairman of the Committee)

Mr. A.K. Gunaratne
Non-Executive Director

Mr. C.S.W. De Costa
Non-Executive Director

Mr. L.R. de Lanerolle
Independent Non-Executive
Director

Mr. L.R. De Lanerolle
Independent Non-Executive
Director

Ms. I.S. Jayasinghe
Independent Non-Executive
Director

Mr. A. Hettiarachchy
Independent Non-Executive
Director

The Internal Auditor functions as
the Secretary to the Committee.
The Chief Executive Officer
and the Manager – Finance are
invitees to the meetings of the
Audit Committee. The Committee
is empowered to examine any
matter relating to the financial
affairs of the Company and its
internal and external audits. Its

Ms. I.S. Jayasinghe
Independent Non-Executive
Director
The Chief Executive Officer of the
Company assists the Committee,
except when his own remuneration
package is deliberated. The
Report of the Remuneration
Committee is given on page 27 of
the Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance

COMPLIANCE WITH COLOMBO STOCK EXCHANGE RULES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The table below sets out the relevant Colombo Stock Exchange Rules on Corporate Governance and the manner
in which the Company complies with them.
Compliance
Status

Rule No.

Subject

Applicable Requirement

7.10.1(a)

Composition of
the Board

7.10.2(a)

Composition
of Independent
Directors

The Board shall comprise of at least
Compliant
two Non-Executive Directors (NEDs)
or one third of the total number of
Directors as NEDs whichever is higher.
Minimum of two Directors or one third
Compliant
of the NEDs whichever is higher should
be independent.

7.10.2(b)

Each Non-Executive Director to
Compliant
Declaration of
Independence/
submit a signed and dated declaration
None Independence annually of his/her independence/nonindependence against the specified
criteria.

7.10.3(a)

Disclosure relating
to Directors

7.10.3(b)

Determination on
Independence

7.10.3(c)

Disclosure relating
to Directors

7.10.5

Remuneration
Committee
Composition of
the Remuneration
Committee

7.10.5(a)

7.10.5(b)
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Functions of the
Remuneration
Committee

The Names of Directors who are
deemed to be independent as per the
criteria to be disclosed in the Annual
Report.
The board shall specify if the criteria
for independence is not met by
a director and the basis for its
determination in the annual report.
A brief resume of the Director which
includes the nature of his/ her expertise
in relevant functional areas.
A listed Company shall have a
Remuneration Committee.
The Remuneration committee Shall
comprise of Non-Executive Directors a
majority of whom shall be independent.

Compliant

One Non-Executive Director shall
be appointed as Chairman of the
committee by the Board of Directors.
The Remuneration Committee shall
recommend the remuneration of the
Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Directors.

Compliant

Details
All nine Directors
are Non-Executive
Directors.
Three of the Nine
Non-Executive
Directors are
independent.
All Non-Executive
Directors have
submitted the
Declaration of
Independence /
Non-independence.
Disclosed on
page 32.

All independent Non-Executive
Directors meet the criteria.

Compliant

Disclosed on
page 10 to 12.

Compliant

Disclosed on
page 21.
The Committee
comprises five NonExecutive Directors,
three of whom are
independent.
The Chairman of the
committee is a NonExecutive Director.
The Committee
recommends the
remuneration of
the Chief Executive
Officer.

Compliant

Compliant
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Rule No.

Subject

Applicable Requirement

7.10.5(c)

Disclosure in the
Annual Report
relating to the
Remuneration
Committee

The Annual Report should set out:
a) Names of Directors comprising the
Remuneration Committee.
b) Statement of Remuneration Policy.

7.10.6

Audit Committee

7.10.6(a)

Composition of the
Audit Committee

7.10.6(b)
7.10.6(c)

Audit Committee
Functions
Disclosure in the
Annual Report
relating to the
Audit Committee

9.2.1

Related Party
Transaction
Review Committee
(RPTRC)

9.2.2

Composition of
the RPTRC

Compliance
Status

Compliant
Compliant

c) Aggregate remuneration paid to
Non-Executive Directors.
The Company shall have an Audit
Committee.
Shall comprise of Non-Executive
Directors a majority of whom shall
be independent.

Compliant

The Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer should attend
Audit Committee meetings.

Compliant

The Chairman of the Audit Committee
or one member should be a member
of a professional accounting body.

Compliant

Should be as outlined in the listing
rules
a) Names of Directors comprising
the Audit Committee.
b) The Audit Committee shall make a
determination of the independence
of the Auditors and disclose the
basis for such determination.
c) The Annual Report shall contain
a report of the Audit Committee
setting out the manner of
compliance by the Company.
Reviewing of Related Party
Transactions (RPT) except transaction
mentioned under rule 9.5 should be
carried out by the committee prior to
entering/ completion of the transaction.
Shall comprise of Non-Executive
Directors and Independent
Non-Executive Directors at the option
of the Company and the Chairman of
the RPTRC shall be an Independent
Non-Executive Director (INED).

Compliant

Compliant
Compliant

Compliant
Compliant

Details

Disclosed on
page 21.
Disclosed on
page 27.
Disclosed on
page 34.
Disclosed on
page 21.
The committee
comprises four
Non-Executive
Directors, three
of whom are
independent.
The Chief Executive
Officer and the
Manager - Finance
attend Audit
Committee meetings.
Two members of
the committee
are members
of professional
accounting body.
Disclosed on
page 21.
Disclosed on
page 21.
Disclosed on pages
25 and 26.

Compliant

Disclosed on pages
25 and 26.

Compliant

Disclosed on
page 28.

Compliant

There are five
Non-Executive
Directors of
whom three are
independent.
The chairman is an
Independent NonExecutive Director
(INED).
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Corporate Governance

Compliance
Status

Rule No.

Subject

Applicable Requirement

Details

9.2.4

Frequency
of Meeting

The Committee shall meet at least once Compliant
a calendar quarter. The committee
shall ensure that the minutes of the all
meetings are properly documented
and communicated to the board of
directors.

Disclosed on
page 28.

9.2.5

RPTRC access
to knowledge,
expertise or
professional advice

Disclosed on
page 28.

9.3.1

Immediate
disclosure

Compliant
Committee should have access to
knowledge or expertise to access all
aspects of proposed related party
transactions or obtain appropriate
professional and expert advice.
Compliant
Any non-recurrent Related Party
Transaction with a value exceeding
10% of the Equity or 5% of the total
assets whichever is lower, or if the
aggregate value of all non-recurrent
Related Party Transactions entered into
with the same related party during the
same financial year amounts to 10%
of the equity or 5% of the total assets
of the equity as per the latest Audited
Financial Statements.

No transactions
arose during the
financial year which
required immediate
disclosure.

Any subsequent non recurrent
transaction after it exceed 5% of equity
entered with the same related party.
9.3.2

Discloser in the
Annual Report

a) Non-Recurrent Related party
transactions

Compliant

b) Recurrent Related party transactions Compliant
c) Report of the RPTRC
Compliant
d) An affirmative Statement by the
Compliant
Directors that they are in compliance
with the rules pertaining to RPT

Disclosed on
pages 76 and 77.
Disclosed on
pages 76 and 77.
Disclosed on
page 28.
Disclosed on
page 28.

COMPLIANCE WITH COLOMBO STOCK EXCHANGE RULES ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Related Party Transaction Review committee comprises the following persons,
Ms. I.S. Jayasinghe (Chairperson of the Committee) – Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. L.R. De Lanerolle – Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. A.K. Gunaratne – Non-Executive Director
Mr. A.N.P. Wickramasuriya – Non-Executive Director
Mr. A. Hettiarachchy – Independent Non-Executive Director
The Manager – Finance functions as the Secretary to the Committee.
The Report of the Related Party Transaction Review Committee is given on page 28.
The Board of Directors declares that the Company has complied with the requirements of the Colombo Stock
Exchange Rules on Related Party Transactions.

24

CENTRAL INDUSTRIES PLC | Annual Report 2019 | 2020

Audit Committee Report
The Board Audit Committee
is a sub-committee of Board
of Directors chaired by an
independent non-executive
director and comprising
exclusively non-executive
directors to assist the Board
in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities in relation to
financial reporting, internal
control and risk management
system compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, internal
audit and external audit related
affairs of the Company.
AUDIT COMMITTEE
COMPOSITION
The Audit Committee is comprised
of four Non-Executive Directors
of whom three are Independent
Directors.
The following members of the
Board appointed to the Audit
Committee:
Member

Status

A. Hettiarachchy

Chairman
IND/NED
NED
IND/NED
IND/NED

A.K. Gunaratne
L.R. De Lanerolle
I.S. Jayasinghe

MEETINGS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee met 4 times during the year. The attendance of the
members at Audit Committee Meetings was as follows:

Member Meetings

Status

A. Hettiarachchy
A.K. Gunaratne
L.R. De Lanerolle
I.S. Jayasinghe

IND/NED
NED
IND/NED
IND/NED

Brief Profiles of the members
are given on pages 10 to 12.
The Manager-Internal Audit
functions as Secretary to the Audit
Committee.

4
4
4
4

The Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and Manager - Finance,
also attended these meetings by
invitation as and when required.
On the invitation of the Audit
Committee, Company’s External
Auditor, M/s. KPMG (Chartered
Accountants) attended two Audit
Committee meetings during the
year. Proceedings of the Audit
Committee meetings are reported
regularly to the Board of Directors.

yy Review risk management
measures and examine the
adequacy, efficiency and
effectiveness of the Internal
Control System over financial
reporting.

ROLE OF THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE:

yy Review the compliance of
financial reporting obligations
under the Colombo Stock
Exchange (CSE) listing
rules, rules and regulations
of Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) and the
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

The Audit Committee assists the
Board of Directors in fulfilling
effectively its responsibilities
relating to oversight over financial
reporting, internal controls and
external and internal audit related
affairs of the Company. The
Committee has been empowered
to:

(IND - Independent Director,
NED - Non-Executive Director)

No. of
Meetings

yy Examine internally any matter
relating to the financial affairs
of the Company.
yy Review and follow up the work
carried out by both Internal
Auditors and External Auditors,
and follow up on findings and
recommendations arising from
thereon.

yy Review accounting policies,
emerging accounting issues
and disclosures relating
to Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards (LKAS)/Sri Lanka
Financial Reporting Standards
(SLFRS).

yy Review and recommend
Interim and Annual Financial
Statements prepared for
approval of the Board and
submission to shareholders.
yy Review the policy on the
engagement of an external
auditor to provide non-audit
services that are permitted
under the relevant statutes,
regulations, requirements and
guidelines.
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Audit Committee Report

FINANCIAL REPORTING
The Committee assisted the
Board of Directors to discharge its
responsibility for the preparation
of the quarterly and annual
Financial Statements to reflect
a true and fair view of the affairs
of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s accounting
records and in conformity with the
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards,
the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007,
rules and regulations of CSE and
SEC.
The Committee reviewed the
Company’s interim and Annual
Financial Statements prior to
submission to the Board and
recommended their issue to
shareholders.
The Audit Committee reviewed
the internal controls on financial
reporting system in place to
ensure the reliability and integrity
of the information provided. The
review included the extent of
compliance with LKAS/SLFRS and
applicable laws and regulations,
review of critical accounting
policies and practices and any
changes thereto, alternative
accounting treatments, going
concern assumptions major
judgmental areas and material
audit judgments.
EXTERNAL AUDIT
The Audit Committee is
empowered by the Board to
recommend the appointment of
the External Auditor in compliance
with the relevant statutes issued
by the CSE and the best practices
of Corporate Governance and
to agree on their audit fee,
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service period, and recommend
the re-appointment or change
of the External Auditor. The
Committee was satisfied that there
is no cause to compromise the
independence and objectivity
of the auditor. The Committee
reviewed the effectiveness of the
audit processes in accordance
with applicable standards and
best practices.
The external auditor’s letter of
engagement including the scope
of the audit was reviewed and
discussed by the Committee
with the external auditors prior to
commencement of the audit.
The Annual Financial Statements
2019/20 were reviewed with
the External Auditor and
recommended for the approval
of the Board. Their Management
Letter and management’s
responses thereto were also
reviewed.
The Committee also met
with the External Auditor at a
meeting without the presence of
management to discuss whether
there have been any irregularities,
constraints, reservations or any
other unsatisfactory matters
arising from the audit which the
Auditor wished to discuss with the
Audit Committee.
The Committee assisted the
Board of Directors in engaging
the External Auditor for non-audit
services in compliance with
the statutes and ensured that
engagement in non-audit services
does not impair the external
auditor’s independence and
objectivity.

RISKS AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS
The Audit Committee reviewed
the Company operations and
monitored the effectiveness of
internal controls and procedures
and is of the view that adequate
controls and procedures are
in place to provide reasonable
assurance to the Board that
the assets of the Company are
safeguarded and the Financial
Statements present a true and fair
view.
INTERNAL AUDIT
During the year, the Audit
Committee reviewed the
adequacy of the scope, functions
and resources of the internal audit
division, the results of the internal
audit process and their evaluation
of the Company’s internal control
system. The Audit Committee
also reviewed and approved the
adequacy of coverage of the
internal audit programme.
REGULATORY COMPLIANCE
The Audit Committee reviewed
the information requirement of
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007,
and other reporting requirements
under SEC and CSE.

(Sgd.)
A. Hettiarachchy
Chairman
Audit Committee
19th June 2020
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Report of the
Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee
comprises five Non-Executive
Directors of the Company three
of whom are independent. The
Chief Executive Officer of the
Company assists the Committee
by providing relevant information
and participating in its analysis
and deliberations, except when
his own compensation package is
reviewed.
The Committee meets once in a
year to decide the compensation
of the Chief Executive Officer,
and the fee of Non- Executive
Directors. In addition, they lay
down guidelines and parameters
for the compensation structure of
all management staff.

experience and contribution,
bearing in mind the Company’s
performance and long-term
shareholder returns.
The Committee reviews the
Company’s compensation
structures from time to time to
ensure alignment with strategic
priorities and comparison with
those offered by other similar
entities.

(Sgd.)
G.S.N. Peiris
Chairman
Remuneration Committee
19th June 2020

The primary objective of
compensation packages is to
attract and retain a qualified and
an experienced workforce. These
packages are aimed at providing
compensation appropriate for
the industry and commensurate
with each employee’s level of
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Report of the Related Party
Transaction Review Committee
The Related Party Transaction Review Committee comprises of five
Non-Executive Directors.
Ms. I.S. Jayasinghe - Independent Non-Executive Director
(Chairperson of the Committee)
Mr. L.R. De Lanerolle - Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. A.K. Gunaratne - Non-Executive Director
Mr. A.N.P. Wickramasuriya - Non-Executive Director
Mr. A. Hettiarachchy - Independent Non-Executive Director
The Manager - Finance functions as the Secretary to the Committee.
MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE
The Committee met four times during the financial year to review related
party transactions and the proceedings of the committee meetings are
reported to the Board. Details of individual member attendance are given
below.

Member

Status

No. of
Meetings

Ms. I.S. Jayasinghe
Mr. A.K. Gunaratne
Mr. L.R.D. Lanerolle
Mr. A. Hettiarachchy
Mr. A.N.P. Wickramasuriya

INED
NED
INED
INED
NED

4
3
4
4
4

The Committee has implemented
a process to identify and report
proposed transactions with
related parties. The Committee
obtained all required information
on such transactions, including
but not limited to other unaffiliated
sources of comparable products
or services and the terms offered
by such parties, from the CEO
and Senior Managers of the
Company. Wherever required the
Committee also obtains advice
from competent independent
professionals in ascertaining the
value of assets acquired from or
disposed to related parties.
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The Committee reviewed all
recurrent and non-recurrent
transactions and proposed
transactions with related parties.
During the period under review,
there were no non-recurrent
nor recurrent related party
transactions that exceeded the
threshold referred to in the Listing
Rules of the Colombo Stock
Exchange. Details of other Related
Party Transactions entered into by
the Company during the above
period are disclosed in Note 31 to
the Financial Statements on pages
76 to 78.

The Committee made
recommendations to the Board
wherever approval of the Board
was required to proceed with such
related party transactions and
also set guidelines for the senior
management to follow on on-going
dealings with related parties.
DECLARATION BY THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS
During the year the Company
did not have any related party
transactions which required the
approval of the shareholders or
immediate market disclosure
under the rules. The related party
transactions are disclosed in
Note 31 on pages 76 to 78 of the
financial statements.

(Sgd.)
I.S. Jayasinghe
Chairperson
Related Party Transactions Review
Committee
19th June 2020
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors
The Directors have pleasure in
presenting to the Members their
report together with the Audited
Financial Statements of Central
Industries PLC and the Group for
the year ended 31st March 2020.

shares and a float adjusted
market capitalisation of
Rs. 302,999,394.06. In terms of
the rule 7.13.1.(a) of the listing
rules of the Colombo Stock
Exchange, the Company qualifies
under option five of the minimum
public holding requirement.

subsidiary companies Central
Industries Marketing (Pvt) Ltd. and
Polymer Technologies (Pvt) Ltd.
did not carry out any business
activity during the year.
PARENT ENTERPRISE

REVIEW OF THE YEAR’S
PERFORMANCE
The Chairman’s Review describes
the Company’s progress and
highlights important events during
the year.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activity of the
Company is the manufacture
and distribution of PVC Pipes
and Fittings. The Company also
manufactures and distributes
Electrical Switches, Sockets and
Accessories, and markets other
products used in the construction
industry. The wholly owned

The Company’s parent and
ultimate parent enterprise is
Central Finance Company PLC.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
The twenty largest shareholders
of the Company as at 31st March
2020 are given on page 91
together with an analysis of the
shareholdings. As at that date the
Company had 1,434 shareholders.
PUBLIC HOLDINGS
Public Holding of the Company
as at 31st March 2020 was
46.73% Comprising 9,237,360

The Directors are responsible for
the preparation of the Financial
Statements of the Company so
that it reflects a true and fair
view of the state of its affairs.
The Directors are of the view that
these Financial Statements have
been prepared in conformity
with the requirements of the
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards,
the Companies Act No. 07 of
2007 and the Listing Rules of the
Colombo Stock Exchange.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The Financial Statements of the Company and the Group are given on pages 40 to 88.
Group
For the year ended 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Revenue
Profit before tax for the year after providing for bad
debts, depreciation of property, plant and equipment
and all known liabilities
Provision for taxation
Profit for the year after taxation

30

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

3,182,456

2,769,967

3,182,456

2,769,967

262,985

177,030

262,890

177,039

(69,080)

(47,535)

(69,016)

(47,520)

193,905

129,495

193,874

129,519
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DIVIDENDS
The Board of Directors
recommend the payment of a
first and final dividend of Rs. 4.00
per share where Rs. 2.00 will
be a scrip dividend for the year
ended 31st March 2020. The
entire ordinary dividend will be
paid out of the taxable profit for
the year ending 31st March 2020
of the Company. As required by
section 56 (2) of the Companies
Act No.7 of 2007, the Directors
confirm that the Company satisfies
the solvency test in terms of
section 57 of the Act and that
the Company has obtained a
certificate from the Auditors to this
effect.
TAXATION
The rate of corporate tax
applicable to Central Industries
PLC and its subsidiaries are 28%
upto 31st December 2019 and
revised tax rate of18% applied to
calculate the last quarter income
tax provision for the year of
assessment 2019/20. Tax rate on
investment income is 24%.
PROPERTY PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT
The Group invested
Rs. 36,782,337 in property, plant
& equipment during the year.
The movement in property plant
and equipment during the year is
given in Note 13 to the Financial
Statements. The movement in

intangible assets during the year
is given in Note 14 to the Financial
Statements.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements
of the Company’s Act No.07 of
2007 and Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards applicable for the
current accounting period and
are consistent with the accounting
policies adopted in the previous
year.
STATUTORY PAYMENTS
The Directors are satisfied that
statutory payments due to the
Government and in relation to the
employees have been made in
full and on time to the best of their
knowledge and belief.
EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD
There have been no material
post balance sheet events which
would require adjustment to,
or disclosure other than as
stated in Note 30 to the Financial
Statements.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Employment policies of the
Company are based on recruiting
the best available people, training
them to enhance their skills and
offering equal career opportunities
regardless of gender, race or
religion. There were no issues
pertaining to employees and
industrial relations pertaining to
the Company that occurred during
the year under review requiring
disclosure.
STATED CAPITAL
The Stated Capital of the
Company as at 31st March
2020 was Rs. 121,320,000/- and
is represented by 19,768,428
ordinary shares.
GOING CONCERN
The Directors continue to
adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the Financial
Statements. The Directors, after
making enquiries and following a
review of the Company’s budget
for 2020/21, including cash flows
and borrowing facilities, consider
that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operation.

DONATIONS
During the year, donations to
charities of Rs. 75,032/- were
made by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company as
at 31st March 2020 were:
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. G.S.N. Peiris – Chairman
Mr. E.H. Wijenaike
Mr. A.N.P. Wickramasuriya
Mr. C.S.W. De Costa
Mr. A.K. Gunaratne
Mr. C.S. Hettiarachchi
Independent Non-Executive
Directors
Mr. L.R. De Lanerolle
Ms. I.S. Jayasinghe
Mr. A. Hettiarachchy
RE-ELECTIONS TO THE BOARD
Mr. A.N.P. Wickramasuriya has
passed the age limit referred to in
section 210 of the Companies Act
No.07 of 2007. His appointment
as a Director of the Company
requires the approval of a
resolution of the Company in
general meeting. A notice is
duly given by the Company that
in terms of section 211 of the
Companies Act No.07 of 2007, a
resolution will be proposed that
the age limit referred to in section
210 of the Companies Act No.07
of 2007, shall not apply to Mr.
A.N.P. Wickramasuriya who has
reached the age of 78 years.
Mr. A. Hettiarachchy has passed
the age limit referred to in section
210 of the Companies Act No.07
of 2007. His appointment as a
Director of the Company requires
the approval of a resolution
of the Company in general

32

meeting. A notice is duly given
by the Company that in terms of
section 211 of the Companies
Act No.07 of 2007, a resolution
will be proposed that the age
limit referred to in section 210
of the Companies Act No.07
of 2007, shall not apply to Mr.
A.Hettiarachchy who has reached
the age of 71 years.
Ms. I.S. Jayasinghe has passed
the age limit referred to in section
210 of the Companies Act No.07
of 2007. Her appointment as a
Director of the Company requires
the approval of a resolution
of the Company in general
meeting. A notice is duly given
by the Company that in terms of
section 211 of the Companies
Act No.07 of 2007, a resolution
will be proposed that the age
limit referred to in section 210
of the Companies Act No.07 of
2007, shall not apply to Ms. I.S.
Jayasinghe who has reached the
age of 72 years.
In terms of Article 85 of the
Articles of Association, Director
Mr. G.S.N Peiris are due to retire
by rotation at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and
being eligible offer himself for
re-election.
AUDITORS
The Financial Statements for the
year have been audited by KPMG
Chartered Accountants, who offer
themselves for re-appointment.
The remuneration of the
Auditors is disclosed in Note 9
to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In addition the auditors were
paid Rs 321,000/- for work not
directly related with the audit
of the Financial Statements
and consisted mainly of opinion
expressed in relation to the
solvency certificate required in
the distribution of dividends of
the Company.
As far as the Directors are aware
the auditors do not have any other
relationship with the Company
other than as disclosed above.
The retiring auditors have
expressed their willingness to
continue in office. A resolution to
re-appoint them as auditors and
authorising the Directors to fix their
remuneration will be proposed at
the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.
The Audit Committee reviewed the
appointment of the auditors, their
effectiveness and relationship with
the Group including the level of
audit and non-audit fees paid to
the Auditor.
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS
The Company has not engaged
in any activities contravening
laws and regulations. All
officers responsible for ensuring
compliance with the provisions
of various laws and regulations
confirm their compliance to the
Board on a monthly basis.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS
The Directors’ interests in
transactions with the Company are
disclosed in the Interests Register
and in Note 31 to the Financial
Statements. The Company carried
out transactions during the year in
the ordinary course of its business
at commercial rates with the
following related entities.
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Name of the Company
and Relationship
Central Finance Co.
PLC (Parent Company)

Name of Directors
Mr. E. H. Wijenaike
Mr. G. S. N. Peiris
Mr. A. K. Gunaratne
Mr. C.S. Hettiarachchi

Position
Managing Director
Finance Director
Director
General Manager
– Legal

Nature of Transactions
Interest earned from short term deposits –
Rs. 257,124/- (2018/19 – Rs. 75,827/-)
Short term deposits as at 31st March
2020 – Rs. 367,887/- (2018/19 –
Rs. 1,123,327/-)

CF Insurance Brokers
(Pvt) Ltd.
(Fellow Subsidiary)

Mr. G. S. N. Peiris
Chairman
Mr. A. K. Gunaratne
Director
Mr. C.S. Hettiarachchi Director

The Company has paid total premia
of Rs. 3.68 million (2018/19 - Rs. 2.61
million) to insurers during the year. CF
Insurance Brokers (Pvt) Ltd., is entitled
to an agency/brokerage commission on
such premia paid by the Company.

Tivoli Plastics (Pvt) Ltd.
(An Enterprise owned
by a Director)

Mr. C. S. W. De Costa Director

Manufacture of PVC Fittings under
agreement with the company. The cost
of services obtained during the year was
Rs. 17.61 million (2018/19 - Rs. 25.66
million.)

Amano Construction
Mr. C. S. W. De Costa Director
(Pvt) Ltd. (An Enterprise
owned by a Director)

Purchase of products manufactured by
the Company – Rs. 14,850/- (2018/19 Rs. 59,070/-)

Central Industries
Marketing (Pvt) Ltd.
(A wholly owned
subsidiary)

Funds advanced by the subsidiary to
Central Industries PLC, repayable on
demand.

Mr. A.N.P.
Wickramasuriya
Mr. A.K. Gunarathne

Director
Director

Amount due to the subsidiary –
Rs. 5.10 million. (2018/19 – Rs. 5.05
million)

Polymer Technologies
(Pvt) Ltd.
(A wholly owned
subsidiary)

Mr. A.N.P.
Wickramasuriya
Mr. A.K. Gunarathne

Director
Director

Rs. 441,388/- million has been paid as
interest on the above funds during the
year. (2018/19 – Rs. 442,321/-)
Funds advanced by the subsidiary
to Central Industries PLC, repayable
on demand.
Amount due to the subsidiary –
Rs. 1.26 million (2018/19 – Rs. 1.20
million)
Rs. 109,219/-has been paid as interest
on the above funds during the year.
(2018/19 – Rs. 115,695/-)

The Directors had no direct or indirect interests in any other contract or proposed contract in relation to the
business of the Company.
INTERESTS REGISTER
The Interests Register is maintained by the Company as per the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.
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REMUNERATION OF
DIRECTORS

SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS AND CEO
No. of shares held as at

Mr. E.H. Wijenaike
Mr. G.S.N. Peiris
Mr. A.N.P. Wickramasuriya
Mr. C.S.W. De Costa
Mr. A.K. Gunaratne
Mr. L.R. De Lanerolle
Ms. I.S. Jayasinghe
Mr. A. Hettiarachchy
Mr. C.S. Hettiarachchi
Mr. I.M.P. Rupatunge(CEO)

31st March
2020

1st April
2019

36,012

36,012

6

6

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

The shareholdings of entities in which the Directors have controlling
interest:

Remuneration of the Directors
is disclosed in Note 9 to
the consolidated Financial
Statements.
The aggregate remuneration
received by the Directors during
the year under review was:
2019/20
Rs.
NonExecutive
Directors

2018/19
Rs.

793,000 2,702,000

For and on behalf of the Board,

No. of shares held as at

Central Finance Company PLC
CF Insurance Brokers (Pvt) Ltd.
CF Growth Fund Ltd.
Expanded Plastic Products Ltd.
Tivoli Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.
During the year ended 31st March
2020;
Mr. E.H. Wijenaike, Mr. G.S.N.
Peiris, and Mr. A.K. Gunaratne
were Directors of Central Finance
Company PLC.
Mr. C.S. Hettiarachchi was the
General Manager – Legal of
Central Finance Company PLC.
Mr. G.S.N. Peiris, Mr. A.K.
Gunaratne and Mr. C.S.
Hettiarachchi were Directors of
CF Insurance Brokers (Pvt) Ltd.
Mr. E.H. Wijenaike exercised
significant control over CF
Insurance Brokers (Pvt) Ltd.
through direct/indirect voting
power.
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31st March
2020

1st April
2019

8,709,000

8,709,000

1,129,200

1,129,200

36,000

36,000

6,450

6,450

614,400

614,400

Mr. G.S.N. Peiris was a Director
of CF Growth Fund Ltd. Mr. E.H.
Wijenaike exercised significant
control over CF Growth Fund
Ltd through direct/indirect voting
power.

(Sgd.)
G.S.N. Peiris
Chairman
(Sgd.)
A. Hettiarachchy
Director
(Sgd.)
Director
Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd.
Secretaries
Colombo
19th June 2020

Mr. G.S.N. Peiris was Director of
Expanded Plastic Products Ltd.
Mr. C.S.W. De Costa was a
Director of Tivoli Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.
Mr. C.S. Hettiarachchi was
Director of Mark Marine Services
(Pvt) Ltd and Central Transport
and Travels Ltd.
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Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities
The following statement sets out
the responsibilities of the Directors
of the Company in the preparation
of the Financial Statements of the
Company. These differ from the
responsibilities of the Auditors
which are set out in their report.
The Companies Act No. 07 of
2007 requires the Directors to
prepare Financial Statements for
each financial year giving a true
and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company as at the end of
the financial year and of the Profit
or Loss of the Company for that
financial year.
In preparing the Financial
Statements, appropriate
accounting policies have
been selected and applied
consistently, reasonable and
prudent judgments and estimates
have been made and applicable
accounting standards have been
followed.

with the Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards and provide the
information required by the
Companies Act. They are also
responsible for taking reasonable
measures to safeguard the assets
of the Company and in that
context to have proper regard to
the establishment of appropriate
systems of internal control with a
view to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities.

By Order of the Board,

(Sgd.)
Director
Corporate Services (Pvt) Limited
Secretaries
Central Industries PLC
Colombo
19th June 2020

The Directors are responsible for
ensuring that the Company keeps
sufficient accounting records
to disclose with reasonable
accuracy the financial position
of the Company and to enable
them to ensure that the Financial
Statements have been prepared
and presented in accordance
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To the Shareholders of Central
Industries PLC
Report on the Audit of the
Financial Statements
OPINION
We have audited the financial
statements of Central Industries
PLC (“the Company”) and
the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”),
which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31st March
2020, and the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes
in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other
explanatory information as set out
on pages 45 to 88.
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In our opinion, the accompanying
financial statements of the
Company and the Group give a
true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company and the
Group as at 31st March 2020, and
of their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards.
BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in
accordance with Sri Lanka
Auditing Standards (SLAuSs).
Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by CA
Sri Lanka (Code of Ethics), and

we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance
with the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
KEY AUDIT MATTERS
Key audit matters are those
matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the
company financial statements
and consolidated financial
statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the
company financial statements and
consolidated financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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01. Recoverability of Trade Receivables
Refer note 17 to the consolidated financial statements
Risk Description

Our Response

The Group has trade receivables amounting to
LKR 763 Mn.

Our audit procedures included.

There are inherent risks relating to customer’s credit
risk profile which varies due to the size of each
customer and the industries that the customers
operate in. The risk is whether the trade and other
receivables are recoverable, and that adequate
allowance has been made for doubtful receivables.
Impairment provision amounting to LKR 25 Mn was
made for trade receivables of the Group as at the
reporting date. Recoverability of receivables remains
one of the most significant judgments made by
management particularly in light of the uncertain
economic outlook in Sri Lanka and at the reporting
date the potential impact of the global COVID-19
outbreak.

OTHER INFORMATION
Management is responsible
for the other information. The
other information comprises the
information included in the annual
report, but does not include the
financial statements and our
Auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the
other information and we do not
express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment on
trade receivables based on ‘expected credit loss’ model
as per SLFRS 09, with reference to historical payment
trends and forward-looking scenarios.
Testing key controls within the credit control and
approval process.
Assessing the adequacy of relevant disclosures
included in the consolidated Financial Statements.
Assessing how management had assessed the
impact of Covid-19 within the credit losses model to
assess whether that it was appropriately considered
in the measurement of doubtful debts at year end. In
particular, we evaluated Management’s assessment of
the likelihood of a severe economic downturn caused
by Covid-19 at the reporting date with reference to the
reasonable and supportable information available to
management at that date.

In connection with our audit
of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other
information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF
MANAGEMENT AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Management is responsible
for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards,
and for such internal control
as management determines
is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements
that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial
statements, management is
responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends
to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance
are responsible for overseeing
the Company’s and the Group’s
financial reporting process.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain
reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance
with SLAuSs will always detect
a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

38

As part of an audit in accordance
with SLAuSs, we exercise
professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
yy Identify and assess the risks
of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
yy Obtain an understanding of
internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company and the
Group’s internal control.
yy Evaluate the appropriateness
of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by
management.

yy Conclude on the
appropriateness of
management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions
that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.
yy Evaluate the overall
presentation, structure and
content of the financial
statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent
the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
yy Obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the
entities or business activities
within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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We communicate with those
charged with governance
regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged
with governance with a
statement that we have complied
with ethical requirements in
accordance with the Code of
Ethics regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related
safeguards.
From the matters communicated
with those charged with
governance, we determine
those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER
LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS
As required by section 163 (2)
of the Companies Act No. 07 of
2007, we have obtained all the
information and explanations
that were required for the audit
and, as far as appears from our
examination, proper accounting
records have been kept by the
Company.
CA Sri Lanka membership number
of the engagement partner
responsible for signing this
independent auditor’s report is
2618.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Colombo, Sri Lanka
19th June 2020
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Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
Group
For the year ended 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Revenue
Cost of Sales
Gross Profit
Other Income
Selling and Distribution Expenses
Administrative Expenses
Operating Profit
Finance Income
Finance Costs
Net Finance Cost
Profit Before Taxation
Income Tax Expenses
Profit for the Year
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Actuarial Gain on Defined
Benefit Obligations
Deferred Tax on Actuarial Gain/(Loss)
Defined Benefit Obligations
Revaluation Surplus on Land & Building
Deferred Tax on Revaluation of Land
& Building
Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year net of Tax
Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year Net of Tax

2020

Company
2019

2020

2019

Note
6

3,182,456

2,769,967

3,182,456

2,769,967

(2,601,985)

(2,317,567)

(2,601,985)

(2,317,567)

580,471
7

6,077

452,400
9,745

580,471
6,122

452,400
9,859

(185,532)

(165,794)

(185,532)

(165,794)

(112,650)

(96,014)

(112,240)

(95,565)

288,366

200,337

288,821

200,900

941

616

941

616

(26,322)

(23,923)

(26,872)

(24,477)

8

(25,381)

(23,307)

(25,931)

(23,861)

9

262,985

177,030

262,890

177,039

10

(69,080)

(47,535)

(69,016)

(47,520)

193,905

129,495

193,874

129,519

23.2

813

2,917

813

2,917

24 (a)

(228)

(817)

(228)

(817)

10.1

-

309,199

-

309,199

10.1

-

(86,576)

-

(86,576)

585

224,723

585

224,723

194,490

354,218

194,459

354,242

Profit Attributable to –
Owners of the Company
Non-Controlling Interests

193,905

129,495

193,874

129,519

-

-

-

-

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to –
Owners of the Company
Non-Controlling Interests

194,490

354,218

194,459

354,242

-

-

-

-

Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.)
Dividend per Share

11

9.81

6.55

9.81

6.55

12

4.00

2.50

4.00

2.50

The annexed Notes to the Financial Statements from pages 45 to 88 form an integral part of these Financial
Statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions
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Statement of Financial Position
Group
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

917,116

Note

ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment
Capital Work-in-Progress
Intangible Assets
Investments in Subsidiaries
Non-Current Assets

13

908,111

917,116

908,111

13.1

-

-

-

-

14

74

124

74

124

15

Inventories
Trade & Other Receivables
Investment Valued at Fair Value
Through Profit and Loss
Current Tax Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Current Assets
Total Assets

-

-

2,000

2,000

908,185

917,240

910,185

919,240

16

906,247

588,529

906,247

588,529

17

751,347

737,401

751,347

737,401
97

18

218

291

73

27.1

116

61

-

-

19

10,067

12,148

9,983

12,068

1,667,995

1,338,430

1,667,650

1,338,095

2,576,180

2,255,670

2,577,835

2,257,335

20

121,320

121,320

121,320

121,320

21

356,619

358,588

356,619

358,588

22

100,814

100,814

100,814

100,814

1,196,356

1,049,168

1,193,010

1,045,853

1,775,109

1,629,890

1,771,763

1,626,575

-

-

-

-

1,775,109

1,629,890

1,771,763

1,626,575

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Stated Capital
Revaluation Reserve
General Reserve
Retained Earnings
Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company
Non-Controlling Interests
Total Equity
LIABILITIES
Employee Benefits
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Trade Creditors
Other Payables
Loans and Borrowings
Current Tax Liabilities
Amounts due to Related Parties
Amounts due to Subsidiaries
Bank Overdraft
Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities
Net Assets per Ordinary Share

23

54,775

50,624

54,775

50,624

24

187,772

189,687

187,772

189,687

242,547

240,311

242,547

240,311

15,735

66,205

15,735

66,205

25

175,864

194,087

174,490

192,766

26

331,982

93,529

331,982

93,529

27

30,587

28,606

30,587

28,606

28

1,089

3,042

1,089

3,042

29

-

-

6,375

6,301

19

3,267

-

3,267

-

558,524

385,469

563,525

390,449

801,071

625,780

806,072

630,760

2,576,180

2,255,670

2,577,835

2,257,335

89.80

82.45

89.63

82.28

The annexed Notes to the Financial Statements from pages 45 to 88 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
These Financial Statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.
(Sgd.)
Dimuthu Nandirathne
Manager – Finance
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements.
For and on behalf of the Board,
(Sgd.)
G.S.N. Peiris
Chairman

(Sgd.)
A. Hettiarachchy
Director

Colombo
19th June 2020
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Statement of Cash Flows
Group
For the Year ended 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)

2019

2020

2019

262,985

177,030

262,890

177,039

13

43,379

41,603

43,379

41,603

14

50

52

50

52

109

132

109

132

Note

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit before Taxation
Adjustments for :
Depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment
Amortisation of Intangible Assets
Impairment loss of Property, Plant & Equipment
Loss on Investment Valued at Fair Value
Through Profit and Loss
Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Impairment of Trade Debtors
Write-off of Inventories
(Reversal of)/Provision for Slow Moving Inventories
Unclaimed Dividends Forfeited
Interest Expenses
Interest Received
Dividend Income
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes

18

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipment
and Intangible Assets
Transfer from Inventory to Property, Plant & Equipment
Capital Work-in-Progress
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
Interest Received
Dividend Received
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Short Term Loans obtained
Repayment of Short Term Loans
Dividends Paid
Net Cash Generated/(Used) in Financing Activities
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the
Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year

73

188

24

(1,103)

(4,032)

(1,103)

63
(4,032)

23

10,123

8,985

10,123

8,985

17.1

11,237

3,425

11,237

3,425

2,583

1,622

2,583

1,622

16.2

5,219

8
8

(140)

5,219

(140)

150

159

150

159

26,322

23,923

26,872

24,477

(941)

(616)

(941)

(6)

(18)

(2)

360,180

Increase in Inventories
Increase in Trade and Other Receivables
Increase/(Decrease) in Amounts due to Related
Parties
Increase in Amounts due to Subsidiaries
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables
Cash Generated/(Used) from Operating Activities
Gratuity Paid
Interest Paid
Taxes Paid
Net Cash Generated/(Used) from
Operating Activities

Company

2020

(616)
(6)

252,313

360,591

(325,519)

(27,435)

(325,519)

(27,435)

(25,183)

(118,501)

(25,183)

(118,501)

(1,953)

914

-

-

252,763

(1,953)

914

74

28

(68,693)

88,295

(68,747)

88,276

(61,168)

195,586

(60,737)

196,045

23

(5,159)

(5,352)

(5,159)

(5,352)

8

(26,322)

(23,923)

(26,872)

(24,477)

(69,298)

(17,875)

(69,179)

(17,779)

(161,947)

148,436

(161,947)

148,437

(36,782)

(17,190)

(36,782)

(17,190)

13/14
13.1
8

-

(169)

-

(169)

-

(917)

-

(917)

3,402

4,032

3,402

4,032

941

616

941

616

6

7

2

(32,433)
26

1,656,624

26

(1,418,171)

(13,621)
969,957
(1,072,495)

(32,437)
1,656,624
(1,418,171)

2
(13,626)
969,957
(1,072,495)

(49,421)

(39,536)

(49,421)

(39,536)

189,032

(142,074)

189,032

(142,074)

(5,348)

(7,259)

(5,352)

(7,263)

19

12,148

19,407

12,068

19,331

19

6,800

12,148

6,716

12,068

The annexed Notes to the Financial Statements from pages 45 to 88 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions
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Statement of Changes
in Equity
GROUP
Stated Revaluation
Capital
Reserve

(In Thousands of Rupees)
Balance as at 1st April 2018
Comprehensive Income for the Year
Profit for the Year
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year
Actuarial Gain on Defined Benefit Obligations
(Note 23)
Deferred Tax on Other Comprehensive Income
Surplus on Revaluation of Property, Plant
& Equipment
Deferred Tax Liability on Revaluation Surplus
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Depreciation on Revaluation Surplus
Deferred Tax on Revaluation Surplus

General
Reserve

Retained
Earnings

Total
Equity

121,320

136,718

100,814

956,197

1,315,049

-

-

-

129,495

129,495

-

-

-

2,917

2,917

-

-

-

-

309,199

-

-

(86,576)

-

-

-

222,623

-

131,595

354,218

-

1,097

-

-

(1,097)

-

344

-

-

(817)
-

(817)
309,199
(86,576)

(344)

-

Transactions with Owners of the Company
Unclaimed Dividends Forfeited
Final Dividend, 2017/18 - paid
Balance as at 31st March 2019

-

-

-

-

-

121,320

358,588

100,814

1,049,168

1,629,890

Balance as at 1st April 2019

121,320

358,588

100,814

1,049,168

1,629,890

-

-

-

193,905

193,905

-

-

-

813

813

-

-

-

-

-

-

194,490

194,490

-

2,626

-

Comprehensive Income for the year
Profit for the Year
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Actuarial Gain on Defined Benefit Obligations
(Note 23)
Deferred Tax on Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Depreciation on Revaluation Surplus
Deferred Tax on Revaluation Surplus
Transactions with Owners of the Company
Unclaimed Dividends Forfeited
Final Dividend, 2018/19 – paid (Note 12.1)
Balance as at 31st March 2020

-

(2,626)

159
(39,536)

(228)

-

657

-

(657)

-

-

-

150

-

-

-

121,320

356,619

100,814

159
(39,536)

(49,421)
1,196,356

(228)

150
(49,421)
1,775,109

The annexed Notes to the Financial Statements from pages 45 to 88 form an integral part of these Financial
Statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions

CENTRAL INDUSTRIES PLC | Annual Report 2019 | 2020

43

Statement of Changes in Equity

COMPANY
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Balance as at 1st April 2018
Comprehensive Income for the Year
Profit for the Year
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year
Actuarial Gain on Defined Benefit Obligations
(Note 23)
Deferred Tax on Other Comprehensive Income
Surplus on Revaluation of Property, Plant
& Equipment
Deferred Tax liability on Revaluation Surplus
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Depreciation on Revaluation Surplus
Deferred Tax on Revaluation Surplus
Transactions with Owners of the Company
Unclaimed Dividends Forfeited
Final Dividend, 2017/18 – Paid
Balance as at 31st March 2019
Balance as at 1st April 2019
Comprehensive Income for the Year
Profit for the Year
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year
Actuarial Gain on Defined Benefit Obligations
(Note 23)
Deferred Tax on Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Depreciation on Revaluation Surplus
Deferred Tax on Revaluation Surplus
Transactions with Owners of the Company
Unclaimed Dividends Forfeited
Final Dividend, 2018/19 – Paid (Note 12.1)
Balance as at 31st March 2020

Stated Revaluation
Capital
Reserve

General
Reserve

Retained
Earnings

Total
Equity

121,320

136,718

100,814

952,858

1,311,710

-

-

-

129,519

129,519

-

-

-

2,917

2,917

-

-

-

-

309,199

-

-

309,199

-

(86,576)

-

-

(86,576)

-

222,623

-

131,619

354,242

-

1,097

-

-

(1,097)

(817)

(817)

-

344

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

121,320

358,588

100,814

1,045,853

1,626,575

121,320

358,588

100,814

1,045,853

1,626,575

-

-

-

193,874

193,874

-

-

-

813

813

-

-

-

(228)

(228)

-

-

-

194,459

194,459

-

2,626

-

-

(2,626)

-

657

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

121,320

356,619

100,814

(344)

-

159
(39,536)

159
(39,536)

(657)

-

150
(49,421)
1,193,010

150
(49,421)
1,771,763

The annexed Notes to the Financial Statements from pages 45 to 88 form an integral part of these Financial
Statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions
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Accounting Policies
1.2 Principal Activities and
Nature of Operations

1. REPORTING ENTITY
1.1 Corporate information
Central Industries PLC (“the
Company”) is a public limited
liability company incorporated
on 18th September 1984 and
domiciled in Sri Lanka.
The registered office of the
Company and the principal place
of business is situated at 312,
Nawala Road, Rajagiriya. The
ordinary shares of the Company
are listed on the Colombo Stock
Exchange.
The Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company for
the year ended 31st March 2020
comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to
as the “Group” and individually as
“Group entities”).
The Company has two fully
owned subsidiaries, Central
Industries Marketing (Pvt) Limited
(Incorporated on 22nd October
2001) and Polymer Technologies
(Pvt) Limited (incorporated on
02nd March 1993). These wholly
owned subsidiary companies
did not carry out any business
activities during the year.
Financial statements of the
Company and the subsidiaries are
prepared for a common financial
year which ends on 31st March.

The principal activities of the
Company are the manufacture
and distribution of PVC pipes
and fittings. The Company also
manufacture and market other
products for the construction
and building industry.
There were no significant changes
in the nature of the principal
activities of the Group during the
financial year under review.
1.3 Parent Enterprise and
Ultimate Parent Enterprise
The Company’s parent,
undertaking as at 31st March 2020
is Central Finance Company PLC.
In the opinion of the Directors,
the Company’s ultimate parent
undertaking and controlling party
is Central Finance Company PLC.
1.4 Number of Employees
The numbers of employees of
the Group and Company as at
31st March 2020 are as follows:
Group – 356 (2019 – 336)
Company – 356 (2019 – 336)
1.5 Responsibilities for Financial
Statements and Approval of
Financial Statements
The Board of Directors is
responsible for the preparation
and presentation of the Financial
Statements of the Company as per
the provisions of the Companies
Act No. 07 of 2007 and the
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.
The Directors’ responsibility

over Financial Statements is set
out in detail in the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibility.
The Financial Statements of
the Group for the year ended
31 March 2020 were authorised
for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the Board of Directors
on 19th June 2020.
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of Compliance
The Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Group and
Company which comprise of the
Statement of Financial Position,
Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity
and Statement of Cash Flows have
been prepared in accordance with
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as SLFRS/
LKAS) as issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of
Sri Lanka, and in compliance
with the requirements of the
Company’s Act No. 07 of 2007 and
Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing
Standards Act No.15 of 1995.
These Financial Statements, except
for information on cash flows
have been prepared following the
accrual basis of accounting.
The Group did not adopt any
inappropriate accounting
treatment, which is not in
compliance with the requirements
of the SLFRSs and LKASs,
regulations governing the
preparation and presentation of
the Financial Statements.
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Accounting Policies

2.2 Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements of the Group and the Company have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following material
items in the statement of financial position.
Item

Basis of Measurement

Freehold land and
buildings

Measured at cost at the time
of acquisition and subsequently
at revalued amounts which are
the fair values at the date of
revaluation
Measured at the present value
of the defined benefit obligation
Measured at fair value

Defined Benefit
Obligations
Investments valued
at fair value through
profit or loss

2.3 Functional and Presentation
Currency
The Consolidated Financial
Statements are presented in
Sri Lankan Rupees, which is
the functional and presentation
currency of all Group entities.
There was no change in the
Group’s presentation and
functional currency during the
year under review. All financial
information presented in
Sri Lankan Rupees has been
rounded to the nearest thousands
unless stated otherwise.

Note Number
13

23
18

Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in
any future periods affected.
Information about critical
judgments in applying accounting
policies that have a significant
effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated Financial
Statements are included in the
following notes;
Note 3.4(d) - ECL Allowance

2.4 Use of Estimates and
Judgments
The preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements in conformity
with Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards requires management
to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
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Note 3.11 - Employee Benefits
Note 4.3(b) - Deferred Taxation
and Current Taxation
2.5. Measurement of Fair value
A number of the Group’s
accounting policies and
disclosures require the
measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non- financial
assets and liabilities.

The Group regularly reviews
significant unobservable inputs
and valuation adjustments. If
third party information is used to
measure fair values, the Group
assesses evidence obtained from
the third parties to support the
conclusion that such valuations
meet the requirements of SLFRS,
including the level in the fair value
hierarchy in which such valuations
should be classified.
When measuring the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group
uses observable market data as
far as possible. Fair values are
categorised into different levels
in a fair value hierarchy based on
the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows.
Level 1: Quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted
prices included in Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).
Level 3: Inputs for the asset
or liability that are not based
on observable market data.
(Unobservable inputs).
If the inputs used to measure the
fair value of an asset or a liability
fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorised in its
entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level
input that is significant to the entire
measurement.
The Group recognises transfers
between levels of the fair value
hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the
change has occurred.
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Further information about the
assumption made in measuring
fair value is included in Note 39.1.
2.6 Materiality and Aggregation
Each material class of similar
items is presented separately in
the Financial Statements. Items of
dissimilar nature or function are
presented separately unless they
are immaterial as permitted by the
Sri Lanka Accounting Standard
– LKAS 1 on ‘Presentation
of Financial Statements’ and
amendments to the LKAS 1 on
‘Disclosure Initiative’ which was
effective from January 01, 2016.
Notes to the Financial
Statements are presented in
a systematic manner which
ensures the understandability
and comparability of Financial
Statements of the Group and
the Company. Understandability
of the Financial Statements is
not compromised by obscuring
material information with
immaterial information or by
aggregating material items that
have different natures or functions.

In preparing these Financial
Statements, based on available
information, the management
has assessed the existing and
anticipated effects of COVID-19
on the Company and the
appropriateness of the use of
the going concern basis. The
Company has evaluated the
resilience of its businesses
considering a wide range of
factors such as current and
expected profitability, the ability
to defer nonessential capital
expenditure, debt repayment
schedules, if any, cash reserves
and potential sources of financing
facilities, if required, and the ability
to continue providing goods and
services.
In the management’s view, the
Company will have sufficient
resources to continue for a future
period. The management has
concluded that the range of
possible outcomes considered in
arriving at this judgment does not
give rise to material uncertainties
related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

2.7 Going Concern
The Central Industries PLC and
its subsidiaries operate in the
manufacturing sector that has
been affected by the outbreak of
COVID 19.
On 11th March 2020, the World
Health Organisation declared the
coronavirus outbreak a pandemic,
and the Sri Lankan government
declared a state of emergency on
18th March 2020 and rightly the
stringent measures taken by the
respective Governments including
the closure of airports, border
entry barriers and lock downs,
have compelled the temporary
closure of the Company and its
Subsidiaries.

2.8 Comparative Information
The comparative information
has been reclassified wherever
necessary to conform with the
current years classification in order
to provide a better presentation.
2.9 Offsetting
Financial assets and financial
liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement
of financial position, only when
there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or to
realise the assets and settle the

liabilities simultaneously. Income
and expenses are not offset in
the income statement, unless
required or permitted by Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards and as
specifically disclosed in the
Significant Accounting Policies of
the Company.
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
Except for the changes mentioned
in note 3.1 Changes in Accounting
Policies, the group has
consistently applied the following
accounting policies to all periods
presented in these Consolidated
Financial Statements.
3.1 Changes in Accounting
Policies
The Group initially applied SLFRS
16 Leases and a number of other
standards are also effective from
1 April 2019, but they do not have
a material effect on the Group’s
Financial Statements as the Group
and Company do not have any
lease assets.
3.2 Basis of Consolidation
The Group’s Financial Statements
comprise of the Consolidation
of Financial Statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries
prepared in terms of Sri Lanka
Accounting standard (SLFRS
- 10) - Consolidated Financial
Statements.
3.2.1. Business combinations
The Group accounts for business
combinations using the acquisition
method when control is transferred
to the Group. The consideration
transferred in the acquisition is
generally measured at fair value,
as are the identifiable net assets
acquired.
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Accounting Policies

As per the requirements
of Sri Lanka Accounting
Standard (SLFRS 3) - Business
Combinations when the Group
acquires a business it assesses
the financial assets and liabilities
assumed under classifications
or designations on the basis of
the contractual terms, economic
conditions, its operating or
accounting policies and other
pertinent conditions existing as
at the acquisition date, which
is the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. Control
exists when the Company has
the power, directly or indirectly to
govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, the Group
takes into consideration potential
voting rights that are currently
exercisable and other contractual
arrangements.
After initial recognition, goodwill
is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit
from the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or
liabilities of the acquiree are
assigned to those units.
If the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the entity acquired exceed the
cost of the acquisition of the entity,
the surplus, which is a gain on
bargain purchase is recognised
immediately in the consolidated
income statement.
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The Consideration transferred
does not include amounts related
to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are
generally recognised in profit or
loss.
3.2.2. Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled
by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed to,
or has right to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the
entity. The Financial Statements
of subsidiaries are included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements
from the date on which control
commences until the date on
which control ceases.
Adjustments required to the
accounting policies of subsidiaries
are changed wherever necessary
to align them with the policies
adopted by the Group.
The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the fair value of
the consideration, including
contingent consideration. The
acquired identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities
are measured at their fair value
at the date of acquisition.
Subsequent to the acquisition, the
company continues to recognise
the investment in the subsidiary
at cost.
Name of subsidiary
Central Industries
Marketing (Pvt) Ltd.
Polymer Technologies
(Pvt) Ltd.

Controlling
interest
100%
100%

3.2.3. Non-Controlling Interest
The proportion of the profits or
losses after taxation applicable to
outside shareholders of subsidiary
companies is included under the
heading “Non-controlling interest
“in the Consolidated Income
Statement. Losses applicable to
the non-controlling interests in a
subsidiary is allocated to the noncontrolling interest even if doing
so causes the non-controlling
interests to have a deficit balance.
Non-controlling interests are
measured at their appropriate
share of acquired identifiable net
assets at the date of acquisition.
Changes in the Group’s interest in
a subsidiary that does not result in
a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions.
As the Company owns 100% of the
equity of its subsidiaries no noncontrolling interest is applicable.
3.2.4. Loss of Control
When the group losses its
control over its subsidiaries, it
de-recognises the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiaries, any
related Non-Controlling Interest and
other components of equity. Any
resulting gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in former subsidiaries is measured
at fair value when control is lost.
3.2.5. Intra-Group Transactions
Transfer prices between Group
entities are set on an arm’s length
basis in a manner similar to
transactions with third parties.
Intra-group balances, intragroup transactions and resulting
unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in the Financial Statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are
eliminated unless the cost cannot
be recovered.
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3.3 Foreign Currency
Transactions

(b) Classification and subsequent
measurement

Transactions in foreign currencies
are translated to the respective
functional currencies of Group
entities at exchange rates as at
the dates of the transactions.

On initial recognition, a financial
asset is classified as measured
at: amortised cost; FVOCI - debt
investment; FVOCI - equity
investment; or FVTPL.

Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies
at the reporting date are translated
to the functional currency at the
exchange rate as at that date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated
into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured based
on the historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.

Financial assets are not
reclassified subsequent to their
initial recognition unless the
Company changes its business
model for managing financial
assets, in which case all affected
financial assets are reclassified on
the first day of the first reporting
period following the change in the
business model.

Foreign currency differences
arising on translation are generally
recognised in profit or loss.
3.4 Financial Instruments
(a) Recognition and initial
measurement
Trade receivables are initially
recognised when they are
originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities
are initially recognised when the
Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
A financial asset (unless it is
a trade receivable without a
significant financing component)
or financial liability is initially
measured at fair value plus, for
an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a financing
component is initially measured at
the transaction price.

A financial asset is measured at
amortised cost if it meets both of
the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets
to collect contractual cash flows,
and its contractual terms give
rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the
principal amount of outstanding.
A debt investment is measured
at FVOCI if it meets both of the
following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
– it is held within a business
model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and
– its contractual terms give rise
on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an
equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Company
may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in OCI. This
election is made on an investmentby investment basis.
All financial assets not classified
as measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes
all derivative financial assets. On
initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be
measured at amortised cost or
at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.
Financial assets - Business model
assessment:
The Company makes an
assessment of the objective of
the business model in which a
financial asset is held at a portfolio
level because this best reflects
the way the business is managed
and information is provided to
management. The information
considered includes:
– the stated policies and
objectives for the portfolio and
the operation of those policies
in practice. These include
whether management’s strategy
focuses on earning contractual
interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration
of any related liabilities or
expected cash outflows or
realising cash flows through the
sale of the assets;
– how the performance of
the portfolio is evaluated
and reported to the Group’s
management;
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– the risks that affect the
performance of the business
model (and the financial assets
held within that business
model) and how those risks are
managed;
– how managers of the business
are compensated - e.g.
whether compensation is based
on the fair value of the assets
managed or the contractual
cash flows collected; and
– the frequency, volume and
timing of sales of financial
assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales
activity.
Transfers of financial assets to
third parties in transactions that
do not qualify for de-recognition
are not considered sales for this
purpose, consistent with the
Company’s continuing recognition
of the assets. Financial assets
that are held for trading or are
managed and whose performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets - Assessment
whether contractual cash flows are
solely payments of principal and
interest
For the purposes of this
assessment, ‘principal’ is
defined as the fair value of
the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined
as consideration for the time
value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a
particular period of time and for
other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a
profit margin.
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In assessing whether the
contractual cash flows are solely
payments of principal and interest,
the Company considers the
contractual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether
the financial asset contains a
contractual term that could change
the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not
meet this condition. In making
this assessment, the Company
considers:
– contingent events that would
change the amount or timing of
cash flows;
– terms that may adjust the
contractual coupon rate,
including variable-rate features;
– prepayment and extension
features; and
– terms that limit the Group’s
claim to cash flows from
specified assets (e.g. nonrecourse features).
A prepayment feature is consistent
with the solely payments of
principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially
represents unpaid amounts of
principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding,
which may include reasonable
additional compensation for
early termination of the contract.
Additionally, for a financial asset
acquired at a discount or premium
to its contractual paramount, a
feature that permits or requires
prepayment at an amount that
substantially represents the
contractual paramount plus
accrued (but unpaid) contractual
interest (which may also
include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination)
is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the
prepayment feature is insignificant
at initial recognition.

Financial assets - Subsequent
measurement and gains and
losses

Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Net
gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost
These assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
The amortised cost is reduced
by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI
These assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the
effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in OCI.
On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI
These assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Dividends
are recognised as income in
profit or loss unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment.
Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI and are never
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities - Classification,
subsequent measurement and
gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified
as measured at amortised cost
or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held-for-trading, it
is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised
in profit or loss. Other financial
liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.
(c) Derecognition

Financial assets
The Company derecognises
a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or
it transfers the rights to receive
the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and
it does not retain control of the
financial asset.
The Company enters into
transactions whereby it transfers
assets recognised in its statement
of financial position but retains
either all or substantially all of
the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets. In these cases,
the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises
a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Company also
derecognises a financial liability
when its terms are modified and
the cash flows of the modified
liability are substantially different,
in which case a new financial
liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value.
On derecognition of a financial
liability, the difference between the
carrying amount extinguished and
the consideration paid (including
any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed) is recognised
in profit or loss.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial
liabilities are offset and the net
amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and
only when, the Company currently
has a legally enforceable right to
set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis
or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.
(d) Impairment policy

Non-derivative financial assets
Financial instruments and contract
assets
The Group recognises allowances
for expected credit losses (ECLs)
on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. Loss allowances
for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.

initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Company
considers reasonable and
supportable information that is
relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based
on the Company’s historical
experience and informed credit
assessment and including
forward-looking information.
The Company assumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly if it is more
than 60 days past due.
The Company considers a
financial asset to be in default
when:
– the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to
the Company in full, without
recourse by the Company
to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or
– the financial asset is more than
180 days past due.
Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that
result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.
12-month ECLs are the portion
of ECLs that result from default
events that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting
date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is
less than 12 months).
The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over
which the Company is exposed to
credit risk.

When determining whether the
credit risk of a financial asset
has increased significantly since
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Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the entity in
accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive).
ECLs are discounted at the
effective interest rate of the
financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets
At each reporting date, the
Company assesses whether
financial assets carried at
amortised cost and debt securities
at FVOCI are credit impaired. A
financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’
when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes the
following observable data:
– the significant financial difficulty
of the borrower or issuer;
– a breach of contract such as a
default or being more than 180
days past due;
– the restructuring of a loan or
advance by the Company on
terms that the Company would
not consider otherwise;
– it is probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or
– the disappearance of an active
market or security because of
financial difficulties.
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Presentation of allowance for
ECL in the statement of financial
position
Loss allowances for financial
assets measured at amortised
cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

PPE Impairment Policy:
Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the
Company’s non-financial assets,
other than deferred tax assets,
are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If
any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. For intangible assets
that have indefinite useful lives
or that are not yet available for
use, the recoverable amount is
estimated each year at the same
time.
The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its value in
use and its fair value less costs
to sell. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific
to the asset. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that
cannot be tested individually are
grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use
that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets.
An impairment loss is recognised
if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

An impairment loss in respect
of other assets, recognised in
prior periods is assessed at each
reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or
no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been
a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation,
if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
3.5 Stated Capital
Ordinary Shares
Ordinary Shares are classified as
equity. Incidental costs attributable
to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognised as an expense.
3.6 Property, Plant and
Equipment
3.6.1 Recognition and
Measurement
Items of Property, Plant &
Equipment are measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment
losses, except for Land and
buildings. Land and buildings are
stated at revalued amounts.
The cost of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to
working condition for its intended
use. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of
materials, direct labour and any
other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the working
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condition of its intended use. This
also includes costs of dismantling
and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they
are located and borrowing costs
on qualifying assets.
All items of property, plant and
equipment are recognised initially
at cost.
Purchased software that is integral
to the functionality of the related
equipment is capitalised as part of
that asset.
When parts of an item of Property,
Plant and Equipment (major
components) have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as
separate items of property, plant
and equipment.
The Group recognises land
and buildings owned by them
in the statement of financial
position at their revalued amount.
Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would
be determined using fair values
at the end of each reporting
period. If the fair values of land
and buildings do not change other
than by a significant amount at
each reporting period, the Group
will revalue such land every five
years.
Any surplus arising on the
revaluation is recognised in
other comprehensive income
except to the extent that the

surplus reverses a previous
revaluation deficit on the same
asset recognised in the income
statement, in which case the credit
to that extent is recognised in the
income statement. Any deficit on
revaluation is recognised in the
income statement except to the
extent that it reverses a previous
revaluation surplus on the same
asset, in which case the debit to
that extent is recognised in other
comprehensive income. Therefore,
revaluation increases and
decreases cannot be offset, even
within a class of assets.
External, independent qualified
valuers having appropriate
experience in valuing properties
in locations of properties being
valued, value the land and
buildings owned by the Group
based on market values, this is
the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at

the measurement date. The details
of land valuation are disclosed in
Note No. 13.2 ii to the Financial
Statements.
3.6.2 Subsequent Costs
Subsequent expenditure is
capitalised only if is probable
that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure
will flow to the Group. The costs of
day-to-day servicing of Property,
Plant and Equipment is recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.
3.6.3. Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated to write
off the cost of items of Property,
Plant and Equipment less their
estimated residual values using
the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful life-time, and is
generally recognised in profit or
loss unless the amount is included
in the carrying amount of another
asset. The land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful life-time for the current and comparative years of
significant items of property, plant and equipment are as follows;
Category of Asset
Buildings
Plant and Machinery
Tools and Equipment
Furniture and Fittings
Motor Vehicles
Computer Equipment
Processing units of Extrusion Lines

Useful Economic Life-time
(Years)
40
5-25
10
10
5
5
10,000-15,000 operating hours.
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Depreciation of an asset begins
when it is available for use or, in
respect of self-constructed assets,
from the date that the asset is
completed and ready for use.
Depreciation of an asset ceases
at the earlier of the date that the
asset is classified as held for sale
and the date that the asset is
derecognised.
Depreciation methods, useful lives
and residual values are reviewed
at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

3.7 Intangible Assets

(d) De-recognition

(a) Recognition and
Measurement

Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible
asset is measured as the
difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

All computer software costs
incurred, licensed for use by the
Group, which are not integrally
related to associate hardware, and
can be clearly identified, reliably
measured and is probable will
lead to future economic benefits
are included in the Statement
of Financial Position under the
category, Intangible Assets, and
carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses if any.

3.6.4. De-recognition
An item of Property, Plant and
Equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected
from its use. The gains or losses
arising on derecognition (disposal
or retirement) of an item of
Property, Plant and Equipment
are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with
the carrying amount of the assets
recognised net within ‘other
income’ in the statement of profit
or loss. When revalued assets are
sold, the amounts included in the
revaluation reserve are transferred
to retained earnings.
3.6.5 Capital Work-in-Progress
Capital Work-in-Progress
represents the accumulated
cost of materials and other costs
directly related to the construction
of an asset. Capital Work-inProgress is transferred to the
respective asset accounts at the
time it is substantially completed
and ready for its intended use.
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(b) Subsequent Expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is
capitalised only when it increase
the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset
to which it relates. All other
expenditure, including expenditure
on internally generated goodwill
and brands, are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
(c) Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated to write
off the cost of intangible assets
less their estimated residual
values using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful
lives, and is generally recognised
in profit or loss. Goodwill is not
amortised.
The estimated useful life-time in
5 years for all computer software
for the current and comparative
years.
Amortisation methods, useful
life-time and residual values are
reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted if appropriate.

3.8 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the
lower of cost or net realisable
value under the weighted average
method, after making due
provision for slow moving items
and obsolescence.
The cost of inventories comprises
all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and
condition. The costs of raw
materials are determined at
purchase price including all
expenses incurred in sourcing.
The cost of Work-in-Progress is the
value of raw material and direct
inputs transferred to production.
The cost of finished goods
includes raw material cost, direct
labour costs and a systematic
allocation of fixed and variable
production overheads.
Non-moving and Slow-moving
Inventories
The management carries out an
annual review of the inventories
and makes provisions as follows:
Non-moving Inventories
80% provision is made on the
value of items which have not
moved for more than 12 months.
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Slow-moving Inventories

3.11 Employee Benefits

50% provision is made on the
value of slow-moving items which
are in excess of 12 months’
average requirements.

a. Defined Contribution Plans (Employees Provident Fund and
Employees Trust Fund)

Machinery Spares
Provision is made in full for
machinery spares which have
been carried in stocks for more
than 10 years.
3.9 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash in hand and shortterm deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less.
Bank overdrafts are shown in
current liabilities. For purpose
of Cash Flow, Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are
included as components of cash
and cash equivalent.
3.10 Liabilities and Provisions
Liabilities classified as current
liabilities on the statement of
financial position are those which
fall due for payment on demand or
within one year from the reporting
date. Noncurrent liabilities are
those balances payable after one
year from the reporting date.
All known liabilities are accounted
for in the statement of financial
Position.
3.10.1 Provisions
A provision is recognised if,
as a result of a past event, the
Company has a present legal
or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and
it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation.

A defined contribution plan is a
post-employment plan under which
an entity pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will
have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay a further amount.
Obligations for contributions
to defined contribution plans
are recognised as expenses in
the profit and loss in the period
during which related services are
rendered by employees.
Employees’ Provident Fund
The Company and employees’
contribute 12% and 8%
respectively on the salary of each
employee. The fund is managed
by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.
Employee Trust Fund
The company contributes 3% of
the salary of each employee to the
Employees’ Trust Fund.
Contributions to defined
contribution plans are recognised
as an expense in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income as
incurred.
b. Defined Benefit Plans
A defined Benefit Plan is a postemployment benefit plan other
than a Defined Contribution
Plan. The liability recognised
in the Statement of Financial
Position in respect of a Defined
Benefit Plan is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation
at the Statement of Financial
Position date. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually
by independent actuaries, using
the projected unit credit method,
as recommended by LKAS 19,
“Employee Benefits”.

The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined
by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using
interest rates that apply to the
currency in which the benefits
will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related liability. The
assumptions based on which the
results of the actuarial valuation
were determined are included
in note 23 to the Financial
Statements. This liability is not
externally funded and the item
is grouped under Non- Current
Liabilities in the Statement of
Financial Position.
The qualifying remuneration
of all permanent employees in
considered in the calculation of
the defined benefit obligation.
However, under the Payment of
Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the
liability to an employee arises
only on completion of five years of
continued service.
The Company recognises all
actuarial gains and losses arising
from defined benefit plans in
Other Comprehensive Income
and expenses related to defined
benefit plans in staff expenses in
the Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income.
Current service cost and the
interest cost related to the defined
benefit plan in employee benefits
are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.
c. Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit
obligations are measured on
an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is
provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be
paid under short-term cash bonus
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if the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation
to pay this amount as a result
of past service rendered by the
employee and the obligation can
be measured reliably.
3.12 Capital Commitments and
Contingencies
Contingent Liabilities are
disclosed if there is a possible
future obligation as a result of past
event but either a payment is not
certain or the amount cannot be
reliably estimated.
Capital commitments and
contingent liabilities of the Group
are disclosed in Notes 34 and 35
to the Financial Statements.
4. STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
4.1 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is comprised of the
invoiced value of goods sold to
customers after deduction of trade
discounts, but before charging
taxes thereon.
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
The Group revenue is recognised
when a customer obtains control
of the goods or services –
Determining the timing of the
transfer of control – at a point
in time or overtime requires
judgement.
Revenue is recognised to the
extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue
recognition will not occur. Revenue
is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or
receivable, net of trade discounts
and sales taxes and after
eliminating sales within the group.
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The following specific criteria
are used for the purpose of
recognition of revenue:
(a) Revenue from the sale of
goods is recognised in the
Statement of Profit or Loss
when it transfers control over
the goods to a customer.
Recovery of the consideration
is probable, the associated
costs and possible return
of goods can be estimated
reliably, and there is no
continuing management
involvement with trade returns
and trade discounts.
(b) Interest income is recognised
on an accrual basis.
(c) Dividend income is recognised
when the shareholders’ right
to receive the payment is
established.
(d) Profit or loss of a revenue
nature on the disposal of
Property, Plant and Equipment
and other non-current assets
have been accounted in
the Statement of Profit or
Loss having deducted from
the proceeds on disposal,
the carrying amount of the
asset and the related selling
expenses.
4.2 Expenditure
i. Operating Expenditure
All expenditure incurred in running
of the business and in maintaining
the Property, Plant and Equipment
in a state of efficiency has been
charged to the Statements Profit
& Loss in arriving at the profit
for the year. For the purpose of
presentation of the Statements
of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, the
Directors are of the opinion that
the function of expense method
presents fairly the elements of the
enterprise’s performance, hence
such presentation method is
adopted.

Expenditure incurred for the
purpose of acquiring, expanding
or improving assets of a
permanent nature by means of
which to carry on the business or
for the purpose of increasing the
earning capacity of the business
treated as capital expenditure.
Repairs and renewals are
recognised in Profit or Loss in the
year in which the expenditure is
incurred.
ii. Finance Cost
Finance expenses consist of cost
relating to financing activities.
Interest expenses are recognised
on an accrual basis
iii. Borrowing Cost
The Group capitalises borrowing
costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset
as part of the asset. A qualifying
asset is an asset which takes
a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or
sale. Other borrowing costs are
recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which they occur.
4.3 Income Tax Expenses
Income tax expense comprises
both current and deferred tax.
Income tax expense is recognised
in the income statement except to
the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity,
in which case is recognised in
the statement of comprehensive
income or statement of changes
in equity, in which case it is
recognised directly in the
respective statements.
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a. Current Taxation
Current tax is the expected tax
payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantially enacted at the
reporting date and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
Taxation for the current and
previous periods to the extent
unpaid is recognised as a liability
in the Financial Statements. When
the amount of tax already paid
in respect of current and prior
periods exceeds the amount due
for those periods, the excess is
recognised as an asset in the
Financial Statements.
b. Deferred taxation
Deferred tax is recognised in
respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for,
– temporary differences on the
initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit nor loss;
– temporary differences
related to investments in
subsidiaries, associates and
joint arrangements to the extent
that the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it
is probable that they will not
reverse in the foreseeable
future;
– taxable temporary differences
arising on the initial recognition
of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised
for unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against
which they can be used. Future
taxable profits are determined
based on the reversal of relevant
taxable temporary differences. If
the amount of taxable temporary
differences is insufficient to
recognise a deferred tax asset
in full, then future taxable profits,
adjusted for reversals of existing
temporary differences, are
considered, based on the business
plans for individual subsidiaries in
the Group. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised;
such reductions are reversed when
the probability of future taxable
profits improves.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at each reporting
date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can
be used.
Deferred tax is measured at the
tax rates that are expected to be
applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.
The measurement of deferred tax
reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are offset only if certain criteria are
met.

4.4. Basic Earnings per Share
The Group presents basic and
diluted earnings per share (EPS)
for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the profit
or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit
or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
4.5. Dividend Distribution
Dividends on ordinary shares
are recognised as a liability and
deducted from equity when they
are approved by the Company’s
shareholders. Interim dividends are
deducted from equity when they
are declared and are no longer at
the discretion of the Company.
4.6. Statement of Cash Flows
For the purpose of the Statement
of Cash Flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash in
hand and deposits in banks net
of outstanding bank overdrafts.
Investments with short maturities
i.e. three months or less from the
date of acquisition are also treated
as cash equivalents.
The Statement of Cash Flows has
been prepared using the “indirect
method”. Interest paid is classified
as an operating cash flow,
interest and dividends received
are classified as investing cash
flows while dividends paid are
classified as financing cash flows
for the purpose of presenting the
Statement of Cash Flow.
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4.7. Segment Reporting
An operating segment is a
component of the Group that
engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses, including revenues
and expenses that relate to
transactions with any of the Group’s
other components. All operating
segments’ operating results are
reviewed regularly by the CEO to
make decisions about resources
to be allocated to the segment and
assess its performance, and for
which discrete financial information
is available.
Segment information reflects
Water Management Products and
Electrical Products. Inter segment
transfers are based on fair market
prices.
The Group’s business activities
are located in Sri Lanka.
Consequently, assets and
liabilities by geographic regions
are considered not material to
be segmented. Expenses that
cannot be directly identified
to a particular segment are
allocated on the basis decided
by the management and applied
consistently throughout the year.

Amendments to References
to Conceptual Framework for
financial reporting
CA Sri Lanka has issued a revised
Conceptual Framework which
will be used in standard setting
decisions with immediate effect.
Key changes include:
– increasing the prominence of
stewardship in the objective of
financial reporting
– reinstating prudence as a
component of neutrality
– defining a reporting entity,
which may be a legal entity, or
a portion of an entity
– revising the definitions of an
asset and a liability
– removing the probability
threshold for recognition
and adding guidance on
derecognition
– adding guidance on different
measurement basis, and
– stating that profit or loss is
the primary performance
indicator and that, in principle,
income and expenses in
other comprehensive income
should be recycled where this
enhances the relevance or
faithful representation of the
Financial Statements.

5. SRI LANKA ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (SLFRS) ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Amendments to LKAS 1 and
LKAS 8

Several amendments to
Accounting Standards are effective
for annual periods beginning
after 1st January 2020 and earlier
application is permitted; however,
the Group has not early adopted
the new or amended standards
in preparing these Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In November 2018, the CA
Sri Lanka issued amendments to
LKAS 1 and Sri Lanka Accounting
Standard – LKAS 8 on “Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors” to align the
definition of ‘material’ across the
standards and to clarify certain
aspects of the term ‘definition’.
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The new definition states that,
’Information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary
users of general-purpose Financial
Statements make on the basis
of those Financial Statements,
which provide financial information
about a specific reporting entity.’
The Company shall apply those
amendments prospectively for
annual financial periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2020.
Amendments to SLFRS 3
In November 2018, the CA
Sri Lanka issued amendments
to the definition of a business in
SLFRS 3 to help entities determine
whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is a business
or not. These amendments clarify
the minimum requirements for a
business, remove the assessment
of whether market participants
are capable of replacing any
missing elements, add guidance
to help entities assess whether an
acquired process is substantive,
narrow the definitions of a business
and of outputs, and introduce an
optional fair value concentration
test. New illustrative examples
were provided along with the
amendments.
The Group shall apply these
amendments to business
combinations prospectively for
annual financial periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2020, if the
asset acquisitions occur on or after
the beginning of that period.
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6. REVENUE
Group
For the year ended 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Gross Revenue
Nation Building Tax

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

3,226,131

2,824,709

3,226,131

2,824,709

(43,675)
3,182,456

(54,742)
2,769,967

(43,675)
3,182,456

(54,742)
2,769,967

6.1 Revenue tax- As instructed by the Ministry of Finance and approved by the Cabinet of Ministers, NBT has
been abolished with effect from December 01, 2019, pending parliamentary approval for the amendment to the
Nation Building Tax Act, No. 9 of 2009.
6.2 Segmental Information is given in Note 32 to these Financial Statements.
7. OTHER INCOME
Group

Company

For the year ended 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)

2020

2019

2020

2019

Gain on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
Dividend Income
Sale of Scrap and Obsolete items
Net Foreign Exchange Gain
Net Change in Investments Valued at
Fair Value Through Profit and Loss

1,103

4,032

1,103

4,032

6

18

2

6

3,678

5,866

3,678

5,866

1,363

18

1,363

18

(73)
6,077

(189)
9,745

(24)
6,122

(63)
9,859

8. NET FINANCE COSTS
Group
For the year ended 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Interest Income on Savings Accounts
Finance Income
Interest Expense on Financial Liabilities
Interest Expense on Distributor Security Deposits
Stamp Duty
Finance Cost
Net Finance Cost

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

941

616

941

616

941

616

941

616

24,116

21,679

24,666

22,233

1,835

1,966

1,835

1,966

371

278

371

278

26,322

23,923

26,872

24,477

(25,381)

(23,307)

(25,931)

(23,861)
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
The profit before taxation for the year is stated after charging all expenses including the following:
Group
For the year ended 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Directors' Emoluments
Auditors' Remuneration – Statutory Audit
– Non-Audit Services
Depreciation on Property Plant & Equipment
Amortisation of Intangible Assets
Donations
Bad Debts – Increase in Specific Provision
Staff Cost
Remuneration
EPF
ETF
Employee Retiring Benefits
Legal Expenses
Provision / (Reversal) for Inventory
Writedown of Inventory to Net Realisable Value

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

793

2,702

793

2,702

552

530

447

430

321

143

321

143

43,379

41,603

43,379

41,603

50

52

50

52

75

417

75

417

11,237

3,425

11,237

3,425

154,171

143,635

154,171

143,635

18,501

16,859

18,501

16,859

4,625

4,216

4,625

4,216

10,123

8,985

10,123

8,985

1,130

673

1,130

673

(140)

5,219

5,219
2,583

1,622

2,583

(140)
1,622

10. INCOME TAXES
Group
For the year ended 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Amounts Recognised in Profit or Loss
Income Tax on Current Year's Profits (Note 10.2)
Income Tax Over Provision Prior Years
Deferred Tax
Origination of Deferred Tax Assets (Note 24 a)
Origination of Deferred Tax Liability (Note 24 b)
Deferred Taxation Charge/(Reversal)
Income Tax Expense
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Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

71,740

44,723

71,694

44,708

(517)

(1,706)

(535)

(1,706)

71,223

43,017

71,159

43,002

(5,995)

(3,503)

(5,995)

(3,503)

3,852

8,021

3,852

8,021

(2,143)

4,518

(2,143)

4,518

69,080

47,535

69,016

47,520
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10.1 Income Tax Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)

2020
Value
Before
Tax

Group
Item that will not be Reclassified
to Profit or Loss
Actuarial Gain on Defined
Benefit Obligations
Revaluation Surplus on Land
& Building
Company
Item that will not be Reclassified
to Profit or Loss
Actuarial Gain on Defined
Benefit Obligations
Revaluation Surplus on Land
& Building

813
-

2019

Tax
Expenses

(228)

Value
Before
Tax

Tax
Expenses

Net
of
Tax

585

2,917

(817)

2,100

-

309,199

(86,576)

222,623

813

(228)

585

312,116

(87,393)

224,723

813

(228)

585

2,917

(817)

2,100

-

309,199

(86,576)

222,623

585

312,116

(87,393)

224,723

813

-

Net
of
Tax

(228)

10.2 Reconciliation of Accounting Profits and Taxable Income
Group
For the year ended 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Profit Before Taxation
Aggregate Disallowed Expenses
Aggregate Allowed Expenses
Taxable Income
Other Statutory Income
Total Statutory Income
Taxable Income
Current Tax on Profits for the Year

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

262,985

177,030

262,890

177,039

73,067

56,359

72,770

56,348

(66,299)

(74,331)

(65,856)

(74,331)

269,753

159,058

269,804

159,056

1,109

668

941

615

270,862

159,726

270,745

159,671

270,862

159,726

270,745

159,671

71,740

44,723

71,694

44,708

10.2.1 Application of income Tax
The revised income tax rate applicable for the period from 1st January 2020 to 31st March 2020 of 18% for
companies is pending for formal approvals. Therefore, this rate is not considered as substantively enacted as
at the reporting date. LKAS 12 – “Income Taxes” require the rates enacted or substantively enacted to be used
in the estimation of income tax provision for financial reporting purposes. However, the provision for income tax
on the taxable income for the period from 1st January 2020 to 31st March 2020 is calculated and reported using
the rate of 18% as the difference between 18% and 28% is not material to the financial statements for the year
ended 31st March 2020.
Had the provision for income tax is recorded at the rate of 28% on the taxable income for the period from 1st
January 2020 to 31st March 2020, the total income tax provision would have been increased by Rs. 4,113,479/-.
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10.3 Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
Group
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Profit Before Taxation
Income Tax Using
the Domestic Tax Rate
Aggregate Disallowed Expenses
Aggregate Allowed Expenses
Other Statutory Income
Current Tax on Profit for the Year
Adjustment for Prior Years

Year ended
31st March
2020

Year ended
31st March
2019

262,985

177,030

69,712

27%

49,568

28%

18,818

7%

15,781

9%

(17,067)

(6%)

(20,813)

(12%)

71,463

27%

44,536

25%

277

-

187

-

71,740

27%

44,723

25%

(1,706)

(1%)

43,017

24%

(517)
71,223

27%
Company

(In Thousands of Rupees)

Profit Before Taxation
Income Tax Using
the Domestic Tax Rate
Aggregate Disallowed Expenses
Aggregate Allowed Expenses
Other Statutory Income
Current Tax on Profit for the Year
Adjustment for Prior Years

Year ended
31st March
2020

Year ended
31st March
2019

262,890

177,039

69,689

49,571

28%

18,727

7%

15,777

9%

(16,954)

(6%)

(20,813)

(12%)

71,462

27%

44,535

25%

232

-

173

-

71,694

27%

44,708

25%

(535)
71,159
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27%
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27%

(1,706)

(1%)

43,002

24%

11. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent entity by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
The following reflect the profit and share data used in the Basic Earnings Per Shares computation:
Group
For the year ended 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Profit Attributable to Ordinary Shareholders (Rs. '000)
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares
Basic Earnings Per Share (Rs.)

2020

Company
2019

2020

2019

193,905

129,495

193,874

129,519

19,768,428

19,768,428

19,768,428

19,768,428

9.81

6.55

9.81

6.55

11.1 Diluted Earning Per share
There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding at any time during the year. Therefore, diluted
Earnings Per Share is the same as Basic Earnings Per Share shown above.
12. DIVIDENDS PER SHARE
12.1 Dividend Declared and Paid during the Year
The final dividend declared for the year ended 31st March 2019 of Rs. 2.50 per share amounting to
Rs.49,421,070/- was paid during the year.
12.2 Proposed Dividends for approval at AGM 					
The Board of Directors have declared a first and final ordinary dividend of Rs. 4/- per ordinary share for
the year ended 31st March 2020 and of which is Rs. 2/- per share will be a scrip dividend amounting Rs.
39,536,856/- and the balance of Rs. 2/- per share will be a cash dividend amounting Rs. 39,536,856/-, which
is to be approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 31st July 2020. The entire
ordinary dividends will be paid out of the profit for the year ending 31st March 2020. As stipulated by Sri Lanka
Accounting Standard (LKAS 10) Events after the Reporting Period, the proposed dividend is not recognised as a
liability as at 31st March 2020 in the Financial Statements.
Dividend per share is calculated by dividing the dividend out of profits for the year attributable to ordinary
shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
12.3 Compliance with Section 56 and 57 of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007
As required by Section 56 of the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, the Board of Directors of the Company has
certified that the Company satisfies the Solvency Test in accordance with the Section 57, prior to recommending
the first and final dividend for the year ended 31st March 2020. A statement of solvency completed and duly
signed by the Directors has been audited by M/S KPMG, Chartered Accountants.
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Carrying Amount as at 31st March 2020
Carrying Amount as at 31st March 2019

Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1st April 2019
Charge for the Year
Deprecation on Assets Written-off
Deprecation on Disposals during the Year
As at 31st March 2020

Cost/Revaluation
As at 1st April 2019
Additions during the Year
Written off during the Year
Disposals during the Year
As at 31st March 2020

(In Thousands of Rupees)

Company

Carrying Amount as at 31st March 2020
Carrying Amount as at 31st March 2019

Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1st April 2019
Charge for the Year
Deprecation on Assets Written-off
Deprecation on Disposals during the Year
As at 31st March 2020

Cost/Revaluation
As at 1st April 2019
Additions during the Year
Written Off during the Year
Disposals during the Year
As at 31st March 2020

(In Thousands of Rupees)

Group

471,856
471,856

-

471,856
471,856

Freehold
Land

471,856
471,856

-

471,856
471,856

Freehold
Land

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

205,923
212,485

6,562
6,562

212,485
212,485

Freehold
Buildings

205,923
212,485

6,562
6,562

212,485
212,485

Freehold
Buildings

12,711
13,783

15,973
4,572
20,545

29,756
3,500
33,256

21,888
17,571

24,209
2,952
(288)
(64)
26,809

41,780
7,327
(346)
(64)
48,697

190,125
190,508

258,294
24,405
282,699

448,802
24,022
472,824

12,712
13,783

15,972
4,572
20,544

29,756
3,500
33,256

21,888
17,571

24,190
2,952
(288)
(64)
26,790

41,761
7,327
(346)
(64)
48,678

Processing
Units of
Plant and Extrusion
Tools &
Machinery
Lines Equipment

190,125
190,508

261,860
24,405
286,265

452,368
24,022
476,390

Processing
Units of
Tools &
Plant and Extrusion
Machinery
Lines Equipment

1,540
1,776

11,071
317
(1)
11,387

12,846
82
(1)
12,927

Furniture
& Fittings

1,540
1,776

11,176
317
(1)
11,492

12,951
82
(1)
13,032

Furniture
& Fittings

4,026
3,894

10,313
1,670
(339)
11,644

14,207
1,851
(388)
15,670

42
5,243

21,728
2,901
(3,450)
21,179

26,971
(5,750)
21,221

4,025
3,893

10,254
1,670
(339)
11,585

14,147
1,851
(388)
15,610

Motor Computer
Vehicles Equipments

42
5,243

21,728
2,901
(3,450)
21,179

26,971
(5,750)
21,221

Motor Computer
Vehicles Equipments

908,111
917,116

341,509
43,379
(628)
(3,514)
380,746

1,258,624
36,782
(735)
(5,814)
1,288,857

Total

908,111
917,116

345,259
43,379
(628)
(3,514)
384,496

1,262,374
36,782
(735)
(5,814)
1,292,607

Total

Notes to the Financial Statements

Property, Plant and Equipment include fully depreciated assets which are in the use of normal business activities
having a cost of Rs.165.4 million. (2018/19 – Rs. 131.65 million)
In compliance with the accounting policy, Freehold Land and Buildings owned by Group companies are
revalued by independent professional valuers at least once in every five years unless there is an indication of
a significant change in the market rates. Details of the revalued Freehold land and building are given in Note
13.2 to the Financial Statements. The tax impact on revaluation of land and building is given in Note 10.1 to the
Financial Statements.
As a result of the COVID-19 outbreak in Sri Lanka during the mid March 2020, it has been concluded that there
is no any adjustment required for impairment of property plant and equipment.
13.1 Capital Work-in-Progress
Group
For the year ended 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Balance as at 1st April
Additions during the Year
Transferred to Property, Plant and Equipment
Balance as at 31st March

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

-

16,148

-

16,148

917

-

-

(17,065)

-

-

-

917
(17,065)

-

-

13.2 Revaluation of Land and Buildings								
i. Fair value hierarchy								
The fair value of land and buildings was determined by an external, independent valuer, Mr. Anuradha
Senevirathne - MRICS (UK), FIV (Sri Lanka), having appropriate recognised professional qualifications
and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued.
The fair value measurement for all of the land and buildings have been categorised as a Level 3 fair value based
on the inputs to the valuation technique used (see Note 2.5).
ii. Valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs
The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the revalued amounts of land and
buildings, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

Type

Valuation Technique

Significant Unobservable
Inputs

Freehold Land

Comparable method:

Open market value:

The valuation of the land is
done by comparing it with the
valuation of a similar type of land
in terms of location, extent and
size. It reflects the open market
value and the real price may go
high or low depending upon the
situation.

Inter Relationship Between
Significant Unobservable
Inputs and Fair Value
Measurement

The Estimated fair
value would increase
(decrease) if:
The estimated amount that Open market values were
a property would be sold higher (lower);
for between a willing buyer
and a willing seller on the
date of the valuation.
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Significant Unobservable
Inputs

Type

Valuation Technique

Freehold Buildings

Contractor’s method:

Depreciated replacement
cost:

The valuation model considers
reconstructing a new building
of similar structure and design
based on current market
prices for material, labour and
present construction techniques
and thereafter adjusting for
depreciation due to use, age and
obsolescence through market
changes.

The cost of replacing
an existing asset with a
substantially identical
equivalent, after taking
into consideration, the
depreciation due to use,
age and obsolescence
through market changes.

Inter Relationship Between
Significant Unobservable
Inputs and Fair Value
Measurement
The estimated fair
value would increase
(decrease) if:
Depreciated Replacement
costs were higher (lower)

iii. Had the Company not revalued the Freehold Land and Building, the carrying value of the same will be
as follows:
Free Hold Land
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Cost as at 1st April
Accumulated Depreciation
Carrying value as at 31st March

Group
2020

2019

2020

2019

44,256

44,256

44,256

44,256

-

-

-

-

44,256

44,256

44,256

44,256

Free Hold Building
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Cost as at 1st April
Accumulated Depreciation
Carrying value as at 31st March

Company

Group

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

196,139

196,139

196,139

196,139

(60,873)

(55,970)

(60,873)

(55,970)

135,266

140,169

135,266

140,169

13.3 Details of Land and Building
13.3 a. Freehold Land carried at revalued amount 							

Location

Last
Revaluation
Date

Land Extent

Factory - 195/4, Kerawalapitiya Road, Hendala Wattala
Head Office - 312, Nawala Road, Rajagiriya
Land - No. 07, Elhena Junction, Warapalana, Udathuththiripitiya

31-Mar-19
31-Mar-19
31-Mar-19

3A-1R-2P
18 Perches
8A-3R

Carrying
value as at 31st
March 2020
(Rs.’000)
313,260
96,000
62,596
471,856
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13.3 b. Freehold buildings carried at revalued amount

Location

Last
Revaluation
Date

Factory - 195/4, Kerawalapitiya Road, Hendala Wattala
Head Office - 312, Nawala Road, Rajagiriya
Factory - No. 07, Elhena Junction, Warapalana, Udathuththiripitiya

31-Mar-19
31-Mar-19
31-Mar-19

No. of
Buildings

Carrying
value as at 31st
March 2020
(Rs.’000)

16
1
2

79,990
49,567
76,366
205,923

13.4 During the financial year, the Company acquired Property, Plant and Equipment to the aggregate value of
Rs. 36.7 million. Cash payments amounting to Rs. 36.7 million were made during the year for the purchase of
Property, Plant and equipment.
13.5 Facilities are available from banks against a Negative Pledge over the Company’s Property, Plant and
Equipment.
Bank

Facilities Available

Public Bank Ltd.

Overdraft, Import Loan and Guarantee facilities for Rs. 80 million

13.6 Restrictions on title of Property Plant and Equipment
There is no legal or contractual restriction on the title of the property, plant and equipment held by the Company
and the Group.
14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Group
For the year ended 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Cost
Balance as at 1st April
Additions during the Year
Balance at 31st March
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance at 1st April
Charge for the Year
Balance at 31st March
Carrying Value as at 31st March

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

3,756

3,756

3,756

3,756

-

-

-

-

3,756

3,756

3,756

3,756

3,632

3,580

3,632

3,580

50

52

50

52

3,682

3,632

3,682

3,632

74

124

74

124

Intangible assets consists of computer software acquired by the Company/Group.
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)

2020

2019

Central Industries Marketing (Pvt) Limited (100,000 Ordinary Shares – 100% at cost)
Polymer Technologies (Pvt) Limited (100,000 Ordinary Shares – 100% at cost)

1,000

1,000

1,000

1,000

2,000

2,000

The Subsidiaries Central Industries Marketing (Pvt) Limited and Polymer Technologies (Pvt) Limited did not carry
out any commercial operations during the year. The Board is of the view that there is no requirement for any
provision against impairment of the investments in the said subsidiaries as at the reporting date based on the
assessment of the net asset values of the subsidiaries.
16. INVENTORIES
Group
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Raw Materials
Work-in-Progress
Finished Goods
Machinery Spares
Consumable Stock and By products
Goods-in-Transit
Less : Provision for non-moving and slow moving
Inventories (Note 16.2)

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

567,586

264,190

567,586

264,190

16,533

8,865

16,533

8,865

309,043

240,120

309,043

240,120

24,011

21,927

24,011

21,927

393

654

393

654

11,803

70,676

11,803

70,676

(23,122)

(17,903)

(23,122)

(17,903)

906,247

588,529

906,247

588,529

-

Group
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
16.1 The amount of Inventories carried at net realisable
value and included above are

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

28,989

17,610

28,989

17,610

16.2 Provision for Non-Moving and Slow Moving Inventories
Group
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Balance as at 1st April
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision during the Year
Balance as at 31st March

68

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

17,903

18,043

17,903

18,043

5,219
23,122

(140)
17,903
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5,219
23,122

(140)
17,903

16.3 Expenses Recognised in Inventories
Group
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
The Amount of Inventories Recognised as an
Expense during the Year
The Write-Downs and Reversals are Recognised in
'Cost of Sales'

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

2,318,457

2,069,266

2,318,457

2,069,266

7,802

1,482

7,802

1,482

16.4 Facilities Available from banks against a negative pledge over the Company’s Inventories
Bank

Facilities Available

Nations Trust Bank PLC
Hatton National Bank PLC
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
Sampath Bank PLC
Seylan Bank PLC

Short Term Loan, Overdraft, Import Loan and Guarantee facilities for Rs.250 Million
Short Term Loan, Overdraft, Import Loan and Guarantee facilities for Rs.200 Million
Short Term Loan, Overdraft, Import Loan and Guarantee facilities for Rs.287 Million
Overdraft, Import Loan and Guarantee facilities for Rs.65 million
Overdraft, Import Loan and Guarantee facilities for Rs.215 million

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Trade Receivables
Impairment of Trade Debtors (Note 17.1)
Deposits
Advances and Prepayments
Other Receivables

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

762,751

734,951

757,548

729,748

(25,446)

(14,220)

(20,243)

737,305

720,731

737,305

4,784

4,187

4,784

4,187

7,544

10,462

7,544

10,462

(9,017)
720,731

1,714

2,021

1,714

2,021

751,347

737,401

751,347

737,401

17.1 Impairment of Trade Debtors
Group
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Balance as at 1st April
Charge for Impairment
Less: Write-off of Previously Impaired Debtors
Balance at 31st March

Company

2020

2019

14,220
11,237
(11)

2020

2019

36,428

9,017

31,225

3,425

11,237

3,425

(25,633)

(11)

(25,633)

11,226

(22,208)

11,226

(22,208)

25,446

14,220

20,243

9,017
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18. INVESTMENT VALUED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS
Group
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Equity Investments in Quoted Public Companies
Hemas Holdings PLC Group – 3885 Ordinary Shares/
Company 1295 Ordinary Shares
Market Value at the beginning of the Year
Dividend Received by Shares – Market Value
Depreciation in Market Value during the Year
Market Value at the End of the Year

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

291

468

97

156

-

11

-

4

(73)

(188)

(24)

(63)

218

291

73

97

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Cash in Hand
Cash at Bank
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Statement
of Financial Position
Less: Bank Overdraft
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Statement
of Cash Flows

2020

Company
2019

2020

2019

148

148

148

148

9,919

12,000

9,835

11,920

10,067

12,148

9,983

12,068

(3,267)
6,800

-

(3,267)

-

12,148

6,716

12,068

2020

2019

2020

2019

121,320

121,320

121,320

121,320

20. STATED CAPITAL
Group
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Issued and Fully Paid
19,768,428 Ordinary Shares

Company

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at general meetings of the Company.
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21. REVALUATION RESERVE
The revaluation reserve relates to freehold land and building which has been revalued by the Group.
Group
For the Year ended 31st March,
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Balance as at 1st April
Surplus on Revaluation of Land & Building
at the End of the Year
Deferred Tax Liability on Revaluation Surplus
Depreciation on Revaluation Surplus
Deferred Tax on Revaluation Surplus
Balance as at 31st March

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

358,588

136,718

358,588

136,718

-

309,199

-

309,199

-

(86,576)

-

(86,576)

(2,626)

(1,097)

(2,626)

(1,097)

657

344

657

344

356,619

358,588

356,619

358,588

22. GENERAL RESERVE
The General Reserve represents the amount set aside by the Company for future expansion and contingencies.
Group
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
General Reserve

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

100,814

100,814

100,814

100,814

100,814

100,814

100,814

100,814

23. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Movement in present value of the defined benefit obligations
Group
For the Year ended 31st March,
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

Defined Benefit Obligation as at 1st April

50,624

49,908

50,624

49,908

Included in Profit or Loss
Current Service Cost and Interest (Note 23.1)

10,123

8,985

10,123

8,985

Included in other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial Gain (Note 23.2)
Payments during the Year
Defined Benefit Obligation at 31st March

(813)

(2,917)

(813)

(2,917)

59,934

55,976

59,934

(5,159)

(5,352)

(5,159)

55,976
(5,352)

54,775

50,624

54,775

50,624

The provision for retirement benefits obligations as at 31st March 2020 is based on the actuarial valuation carried
out by professionally qualified actuaries, Mr. Pushpakumar Gunasekara, an Actuary/Associate of Institute of
Actuaries of Australia, using “Projected Unit Credit” (PUC) method, the method recommended by the Sri Lanka
Accounting Standard – LKAS 19 on “Employee Benefits”.
The actuarial present value of the promised retirement benefits as at 31st March 2020 amounted to
Rs. 54,775,351.
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23.1 Expenses Recognised in Profit or Loss
Group

Company

As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)

2020

2019

2020

2019

Current Service Cost
Interest Cost

4,554

3,993

4,554

3,993

5,569

4,992

5,569

4,992

10,123

8,985

10,123

8,985

23.2 Actuarial Gains Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Group
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Actuarial Gain

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

813

2,917

813

2,917

813

2,917

813

2,917

Actuarial Assumptions
The following are the principle assumptions used by the valuer for the valuation as at 31st March 2020.

Discount Rate
Expected Future Salary Increases
Staff Turnover Rate
Retirement Age (Years)

2020

2019

9.5%

11.0%

10.0%

10.0%

24%

25%

55

55

Other assumptions regarding future mortality are based on A67-70 (Ultimate) UK Assured Lives Table.
The gratuity liability is not externally funded.
It is also assumed that the Company will continue in business as a going concern.
23.3 Sensitivity of Assumptions Employed in the Actuarial Valuation
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
employed with all other variables held constant in the employment benefit liability measurement.
The sensitivity on the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and Statement of Financial
Position of the Group and the Company which result from the assumed changes in the discount rate and the
salary increment rate is as follows.
Effect on charge to
Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive
Income for the year ended
31st March 2020
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Discount Rate
Salary Increment Rate
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Effect on employee Benefit
Obligations in the Financial
Position as at
31st March 2020

1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease
1,179

(1,255)

(1,179)

1,255

(1,457)

1,395

1,457

(1,395)
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23.4 Maturity Analysis of the Payment						
The following payments are expected on defined benefit obligation in future years.
Group
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Within next 12 months
Between 1-2 years
Between 2-5 years
Beyond 5 years
Weighted Average Duration (Years) of Defined
Benefit Obligation

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

19,080

18,035

19,080

18,035

4,617

4,096

4,617

4,096

31,078

28,493

31,078

28,493

-

-

-

-

54,775

50,624

54,775

50,624

5.25

5.66

5.25

5.66

24. DEFERRED TAXATION
Group
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Deferred Tax Liabilities - Note 24 (b)
Deferred Tax Assets - Note 24 (a)

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

215,252

211,400

215,252

211,400

(27,480)

(21,713)

(27,480)

(21,713)

187,772

189,687

187,772

189,687

2020

2019

2020

2019

21,713

19,027

21,713

19,027

5,995

3,503

5,995

3,503

24. (a) Deferred Tax Assets
Group
For the Year ended 31st March,
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Balance at the beginning of the Year
Provision during the Year – Profit or Loss
Reversal during the Year – Other Comprehensive Income
Balance at the end of the Year

(228)
27,480

Company

(817)

(228)

(817)

21,713

27,480

21,713

2020

2019

2020

2019

211,400

116,803

211,400

116,803

3,852

8,021

3,852

8,021

-

86,576

-

86,576

215,252

211,400

215,252

211,400

24. (b) Deferred Tax Liabilities
Group
For the Year ended 31st March,
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Balance at the beginning of the Year
Reversal during the Year – Profit or Loss
Reversal during the Year – Other Comprehensive Income
Balance at the end of the Year

Company
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24. (c) Provision for the year
Group
For the Year ended 31st March,
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Provision/(Reversal) during the year recognised
in Profit/(Loss)
Provision during the year recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income
Provision/(Reversal) during the year recognised
in Comprehensive Income

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

(2,143)

4,518

(2,143)

4,518

228
(1,915)

87,393
91,911

228

87,393

(1,915)

91,911

24. (d) Reconciliation of Deferred tax effect on temporary differences

Group/Company
Temporary Difference on Property, Plant & Equipment
Temporary Difference on Revaluation of Land
and Buildings
Temporary Difference on Retirement Benefit Obligations
Temporary Difference on Stock Provision
Temporary Difference on Provision for Bad
and Doubtful Debts

2020

2019

Temporary Tax effect on
Difference
Temporary
Difference

Temporary Tax effect on
Difference
Temporary
Difference

(296,423)

(82,999)

(282,669)

(79,147)

(472,329)

(132,252)

(472,329)

(132,252)

54,775

15,337

50,624

14,175

23,122

6,474

17,903

5,012

20,243
(670,611)

5,668
(187,772)

9,017
(677,454)

2,525
(189,687)

24.(e) The Potential Impact on the Deferred Tax from the substantively Enacted Inland Revenue Act.
As per the Circular No. PN/IT/2020-03 (Revised) issued by the Department of Inland Revenue, Income Tax
rates of Corporates have been revised to 18% from 28% effective from 01st January 2020 pending formal
amendments to be made to the Inland Revenue Act. Accordingly, it was not considered to be substantially
enacted as at reporting date.									
However, the Company continued to apply the Income Tax rate of 28% in calculating Deferred Tax Assets /
Liabilities as at 31st March 2020 as the legislation has not been substantively enacted as the reporting date.
The potential balances on the deferred tax had the Company applied the proposed rates as above shown below:
Group/Company

Deferred Tax
Asset

Deferred Tax
Liability

21,713

211,400

(3,901)

(73,024)

Balance as at 01st April 2019
Deferred tax provision recognised in Profit or Loss
Deferred tax provision recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Balance as at 31st March 2020

74

CENTRAL INDUSTRIES PLC | Annual Report 2019 | 2020

(146)
17,666

138,376

25. OTHER PAYABLES
Group
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Accrued Expenses
Distributor Security Deposits
Other Liabilities
Balance as at 31st March

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

128,129

79,749

127,954

79,631

23,054

24,487

23,054

24,487

24,681

89,851

23,482

88,648

175,864

194,087

174,490

192,766

26. LOANS AND BORROWINGS
Group

Company

For the year ended 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)

2020

2019

2020

2019

Balance as at 1st April
Loans obtained during the Year

93,529

196,067

93,529

196,067

1,656,624

969,957

1,656,624

969,957

1,750,153

1,166,024

1,750,153

1,166,024

(1,418,171)

(1,072,495)

(1,418,171)

(1,072,495)

Repayments during the Year
Balance at 31st March

331,982

93,529

331,982

93,529

Loans and Borrowings have been obtained for working capital financing from commercial banks and are
repayable within periods ranging from 2 months to 5 months. All working capital facilities have been obtained
under a negative pledge on the Company’s assets.
27. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES
Group
For the year ended 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)

2020

Balance as at 1st April
Provision for the Year
Payments made during the Year
Balance at 31st March
27.1 Advance Payments made during the Year

Company
2019

2020

28,606

3,403

28,606

3,383

71,223

43,017

71,159

43,002

(69,242)

(17,814)

(69,179)

(17,779)

30,587

28,606

30,587

28,606

-

-

(116)

(61)

2019

28. DUE TO RELATED PARTIES
Group

Company

As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)

2020

2019

2020

2019

Tivoli Plastics (Pvt) Ltd.
Balance at 31st March

1,089

3,042

1,089

3,042

1,089

3,042

1,089

3,042
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29. DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES
Group
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

-

-

5,109

5,050

-

-

1,266

1,251

-

-

6,375

6,301

Central Industries Marketing (Pvt) Ltd.
Polymer Technologies (Pvt) Ltd.

The above balances represent funds advanced by the subsidiaries to the Company. Interest has been paid to
the subsidiaries on these funds at average weighted deposit rates (AWDR) that prevailed during the year.
30. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There have been no material events occurring after the reporting date that require adjustments to or disclosure in
the Financial Statements, other than those disclosed in Note 12, in respect of proposed dividend for the year.
31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
31.1 Parent and Ultimate Controlling Entity
In the opinion of Directors, Central Finance Company PLC is the parent and Ultimate parent.
31.2 Transactions with Group Entities
The Company carried out transactions in the ordinary course of its business with parties who are defined as
related parties in Sri Lanka Accounting Standard LKAS 24 – “Related Party Disclosures” the details of which
are reported below. The consideration for the goods and services provided has been paid or accrued at prices
offered to unrelated customers prevailing at that time.
Group/Company
Transaction Value
Name of the
Related Parties
(In Thousands of
Rupees)

Nature of
Relationship

Central Finance
Co. PLC

Parent
Company

CF Insurance
Brokers (Pvt) Ltd.

Nations Trust Bank
PLC

76

Fellow
Subsidiary

An Associate
of the Parent
Company

31st March
2020

31st March
2019

257

76

-

26

-

100

Recurrent

3,686

2,614

Recurrent

-

36

Interest received
Recurrent
Interest and Charges Paid
Recurrent

644

515

5,570

8,329

Nature of Transactions

Status

Interest earned from
savings account
Recurrent
Value of goods purchased
from the company
Recurrent
Value of purchased blade
server (IBMHS22)
Non-Recurrent
Entitled to Brokerage
Commission on premia
Paid to Insurance
Companies.
Value of Insurance
premia Paid
Received Bokerage
Commission on Vehicle
Insurance
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Group/Company
Transaction Value
Name of the
Related Parties
(In Thousands of
Rupees)

Nature of
Relationship

31st March
2020

31st March
2019

Recurrent

441

442

Recurrent

109

116

Nature of Transactions

Status

Central Industries
A wholly owned
Marketing (Pvt) Ltd. subsidiary

Interest paid on funds
advanced

Polymer
Technologies
(Pvt) Ltd.

Interest paid on funds
advanced

A wholly owned
subsidiary

31.2.(a) Due to / from Group Entities
Group/Company
Transaction Value
Name of the
Company
(In Thousands of
Rupees)
Central Finance
Co. PLC
Nations Trust
Bank PLC.

Nature of
Relationship

Nature of Transactions

Status

Parent Company

Saving account balance

Recurrent

An Associate
of the Parent
Company

Banking facilities in
the normal course of
business.
Limit of Facilities Rs. 250 million

31st March
2020

31st March
2019

368

1,123

-

-

31.3 Transactions with other Related Parties
Group/Company
Transaction Value
Name of the
Company
(In Thousands of
Rupees)
Tivoli Plastics
(Pvt) Ltd.

Nature of
Relationship

An entity
controlled by
Director –
Mr. C.S.W. De
Costa
Amano Construction An entity
(Pvt ) Ltd.
controlled by
Director - Mr.
C.S.W. De Costa
Mr. A.N.P.
Non-Executive
Wickramasuriya
Director of the
Company

Nature of Transactions
Subcontract Manufacture
of PVC Pipe Fittings
Value of Processing
Charges paid

31st March
2020

31st March
2019

Recurrent

17,614

25,663

Recurrent

15

59

-

4,200

Status

Purchase of Products
manufactured by the
Company
Sale of Company owned
Motor Vehicle – KU 4656

Non-Recurrent

All transactions negotiated and carried out in the ordinary course of business have been reviewed and
approved by the Related Party Transactions Review Committee of the Company. All these transactions were
entered into with these related parties on an armslength basis under normal commercial terms & conditions.
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Transactions with Related Parties
31.4 Key Management Personnel 		
According to the LKAS 24 Related Party Disclosure, Key Management Personnel are those having authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity. Accordingly, the Directors
(including Executive and Non-Executive Directors) and CEO of the Company have been classified as Key
Management Personnel of the Company and the Group.
As Central Finance Co. PLC (CFC) is the ultimate parent of the Company, the Board of Directors of CFC have
the authority and responsibility of planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company. Accordingly
the Directors (including Executive and Non-Executive Directors) of CFC have also been classified as Key
Management Personnel of the Company and the Group.
i. Loans given to Directors
No loans have been given to the Directors of the Company.
ii. Key Management Personnel Compensation
Compensation paid to/on behalf of Key Management Personnel of the Group and Company are as follow:
Group

Company

For the Year ended 31st March,
(In Thousands of Rupees)

2020

2019

2020

2019

Short-Term Employee Benefits
Post Employment Benefits

9,718

6,902

9,718

6,902

900

1,213

900

1,213

10,618

8,115

10,618

8,115

31.5 The Group/company has not made any provision with respect to related party receivables as there were no
such receivables at the year end. (2019-Nil)
31.6 Guarantees given to/received from Related parties			
There are no guarantees given to/received from related parties
31.7 Transactions with Close Family Members
There were no transactions with close family members of related parties during the year ended 31st March 2020.
32. SEGMENT INFORMATION
For the Year ended 31st March,
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Revenue
Water Management Products
Electrical Products
Profit Before Taxation
Water Management Products
Electrical Products

2020

2019

2,976,337

2,512,950

206,119

257,017

3,182,456

2,769,967

264,920

195,402

(1,935)
262,985
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(18,372)
177,030

As at 31st March,
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Segment Assets & Liabilities
Total Assets
Water Management Products
Electrical Products
Total Liabilities
Water Management Products
Electrical Products

2020

2019

2,392,506

2,070,076

183,674

185,594

2,576,180

2,255,670

787,946

608,354

13,125

17,426

801,071

625,780

33. LITIGATIONS AND CLAIMS
There are no litigations and claims against the company or Group as at the end of the reporting period.
34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Company and the Group had no significant contingent liabilities accruing as at 31st March 2020.
35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Board of Directors had approved to purchase capital assets totalling Rs. 5.35 million of which Rs. 0.02
million has been paid as an advance. The Company had no other capital commitments as at the 31 March 2020.
36. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION
Where necessary information has been rearranged to conform to the current year’s presentation and
classification.
37. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements.
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38. GROUP IMPACT ON COVID 19
On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared the coronavirus outbreak a pandemic, and the
Sri Lankan government declared a state of emergency on 18th March 2020. Responding to the potentially
serious threat COVID – 19 presents to public health, the Sri Lankan government authorities have taken
measures to contain the outbreak, including introducing B34 and the ‘lockdown’ of certain industries, pending
further developments. In particular, airlines and railways suspended international transport of people, schools,
universities, restaurants, hotels, cinemas, theaters and museums and sports facilities, retailers excluding food
retailers, grocery stores and pharmacies were closed.
The impact of COVID – 19 pandemics on the business/ operations of the Group and responses to the
impact on COVID-19
The adverse impact on the macroeconomy and restrictions being imposed on the business operations of many
companies, especially on small and medium enterprises (SMEs) and the construction industry have caused a
impact on our revenue generation. Similarly, low disposable income of customers has intensified the challenge
of collecting dues. However, as of to date the Company has been able to meet all statutory payments as well as
financial obligations to employees.
The company recommenced a part of the operations during latter part of April 2020 having obtained necessary
approvals and having taken all necessary health and safety measures to protect staff and customers. The
company commenced the dealer sales operation upon lifting of the curfew in all Districts other than Colombo,
Gampaha, Kaluthara and Puttalam ensuring that all staff follow the required health and safety guidelines
announced by health authorities. In the meantime, we have replenished stock levels at Distributors in different
parts of the island in order to facilitate sales without having to face stock shortages in the dealer market.
Subsequent to the lifting day time curfew in all district the Company has resumed all normal operations.
The key priority of the Company has been ensuring that it maintains a strong liquidity position during these
challenging times by way of confirmed bank lines. Cost structures were reviewed and plans were implemented
to reduce/cut costs which were identified as no longer required under the prevailing situation.
A large number of office staff have been able to work from home with secure access to operating systems.
The Company’s expectation of the future impact of Covid-19 on the Company’s future operation and the
financial condition.
Short term uncertainties have arisen mainly due to the delay in receiving amounts due from Corporate and
Dealer Network Customers, and Government Projects. However, management has assessed that the Company
is adequately equipped with the required resources to carry out operations in the normal course of business.
The management is unable to reasonably quantify the extent and intensity of the future impact of the COVID
19 pandemic on the financial position of the Company. The management closely monitoring the prevailing fluid
conditions and will take appropriate actions as far as possible.
The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on significant accounting estimates were discussed in the relevant notes
to these Financial Statements.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS – FAIR VALUE & RISK MANAGEMENT
39.1 Accounting Classification & fair value
Financial Instruments are measured on an ongoing basis either at Fair Value or at Amortised Cost. The summary
of significant accounting policies describes how the classes of financial instruments are measured, and how
income and expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognised.
The following tables analyze financial instruments measured at fair value at the reporting date, by the level in
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised and a comparison of the carrying
amounts and fair values of the financial assets and liabilities of the Company and Group which are not measured
at fair value in the Financial Statements. The amounts are based on the values recognised in the statement of
financial position.
The carrying values of financial assets and liabilities which have a shorter maturity period and based on
normal market conditions have been considered as a reasonable approximation to the fair value. Accordingly,
the fair value hierarchy does not apply to cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, loans and
borrowings, trade and other payables and amounts due to related parties and subsidiaries.
Accounting classifications of financial instruments - Group
As at 31st March 2020
(In Thousands of
Rupees)
Financial assets
Cash and Cash
Equivalents
Trade Receivables
Investments valued
at FVTPL
Total
Financial liabilities
Loans and Borrowings
Trade Creditors
Due to Related Parties
Overdraft
Total

Financial
Financial Assets At
Other
Assets at Amortised Financial
Cost Liabilities
FVTPL

Fair value hierarchy
Total
Carrying
Amount Fair value Level 01 Level 02 Level 03

-

10,067

-

10,067

-

-

-

-

-

737,305

-

737,305

-

-

-

-

218

-

-

-

-

218

747,372

-

-

-

218

218

218

747,590

218

218

331,982

331,982

-

-

-

-

-

15,735

15,735

-

-

-

-

-

1,089

1,089

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,267

3,267

-

-

-

-

-

-

352,073

352,073

-

-

-

-
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As at 31st March 2019
(In Thousands of
Rupees)
Financial assets
Cash and Cash
Equivalents
Trade Receivables
Investments valued
at FVTPL
Total
Financial liabilities
Loans and Borrowings
Trade Creditors
Due to Related Parties
Total

Financial
Financial Assets At
Other
Assets at Amortised Financial
FVTPL
Cost Liabilities

Fair value hierarchy
Total
Carrying
Amount Fair value Level 01 Level 02 Level 03

-

12,148

-

12,148

-

-

-

-

-

720,731

-

720,731

-

-

-

-

291

-

-

291

291

291

-

-

291

732,879

-

733,170

291

291

-

-

-

-

93,529

93,529

-

-

-

-

-

-

66,205

66,205

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,042

3,042

-

-

-

-

-

-

162,776

162,776

-

-

-

-

Accounting classifications of financial instruments – Company
As at 31st March 2020
(In Thousands of
Rupees)
Financial assets
Cash and Cash
Equivalents
Trade Receivables
Investments valued
at FVTPL
Total
Financial liabilities
Loans and Borrowings
Trade Creditors
Due to Related Parties
Due to Subsidiaries
Overdraft
Total

82

Financial
Financial Assets At
Other
Assets at Amortised Financial
FVTPL
Cost Liabilities

Fair value hierarchy
Total
Carrying
Amount Fair value Level 01 Level 02 Level 03

-

9,983

-

9,983

-

-

-

-

-

737,305

-

737,305

-

-

-

-

-

73

73

73

-

-

73

73

73

-

73

747,288

-

-

331,982

331,982

-

-

-

-

-

-

15,735

15,735

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,089

1,089

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,267

3,267

-

-

-

-

-

-

358,448

358,448

-

-

-

-

747,361

6,375

6,375
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As at 31st March 2019
(In Thousands of
Rupees)

Financial
Financial Assets At
Other
Assets at Amortised Financial
FVTPL
Cost Liabilities

Financial assets
Cash and Cash
Equivalents
Trade Receivables
Investments valued
at FVTPL
Total
Financial liabilities
Loans and Borrowings
Trade Creditors
Due to Related Parties
Due to Subsidiaries
Total

Fair value hierarchy
Total
Carrying
Amount Fair value Level 01 Level 02 Level 03

-

12,068

-

12,068

-

-

-

-

-

720,731

-

720,731

-

-

-

-

97

-

-

97

97

97

97

732,799

-

732,896

97

97

-

-

-

-

93,529

93,529

-

-

-

-

-

-

66,205

66,205

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,042

3,042

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,301

6,301

-

-

-

-

-

-

169,077

169,077

-

-

-

-

39.2 Financial Risk Management - Overview
The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Credit risk
- Market risk
- Liquidity risk
This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of
capital.
Risk Management Framework
The Group Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
management framework. The Board of Directors has delegated this function to the Chief Executive Officer who
develops and monitors the Company’s risk management policies and report regularly to the Board of Directors
on its activities. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks
faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to
maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.
The Audit Committee, oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management
policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks
faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit
undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which
are reported to the Audit Committee.

CENTRAL INDUSTRIES PLC | Annual Report 2019 | 2020

83

Notes to the Financial Statements

39.2.1 Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group, if a customer or counter-party to a financial instrument fails to
meet contractual obligations. Credit risk arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers and the
placement of deposits with banking institutions.
39.2.1.1 Exposure to credit risk
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at the year end based on the carrying value of financial assets
in the statement of financial position is given below. There was no off-balance sheet exposure as at the year
end date.
Group
As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Financial assets at fair value through P&L
Investments valued at FVTPL (Note 18 )
Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade and Other Receivables (Note 17)
Cash at Bank (Note 19)
Total

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

218

291

73

97

751,347

737,401

751,347

737,401

9,919

12,000

9,835

11,920

761,484

749,692

761,255

749,418

39.2.1.2 Management of Credit Risk

a) Trade Receivables
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.
However, management also considers the market segment of the Company’s customer base, including the
default risk of the industry in which customers operate, as these factors may have an influence on credit risk.
The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for
creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered.
Purchase limits are established for each customer, which represents the maximum open amount without
requiring further approval from the Chief Executive Officer; these limits are reviewed annually. Customers that fail
to meet the Company’s benchmark creditworthiness may transact with the Company only on a prepayment basis
or on a secured basis.
In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to the credit characteristics of the market
segment, including whether they are an individual or legal entity, whether they are a corporate customer or a
state entity.
The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect
of trade and other receivables being a specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures.

84
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The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the end of the reporting period by type of
counterparty was as follows;
Group
For the Year ended 31st March,
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Retail Dealer Channel Customers
Corporate Customers
State Entities
Total

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

441,819

429,989

436,616

424,786

169,466

185,814

169,466

185,814

151,466

119,148

151,466

119,148

762,751

734,951

757,548

729,748

The Company’s ten most significant customers account for Rs.218.1 million of the trade receivables carrying
amount as at 31 March 2020 (2019: Rs. 181.5 million).

Impairment of receivables
The Company and the Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected
losses in respect of Trade Receivables. Since the Company and Group operate in an environment where each
customer contract is different, developing an allowance matrix as a whole would be impracticable. Therefore the
Board of Directors has decided to assess each receivable separately based on the segment, age of customer
relationship and historical data of payment statistics as at every reporting date.
The aging of trade receivables at the end of the reporting period was as follows:
As at 31st March 2020
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Group

1 – 60 days
61 – 182 days
Above 182 days
Total
Less: Impairment on trade receivable
Carrying value of trade receivables

Company

392,833

392,833

323,058

323,058

46,860

41,657

762,751

757,548

(25,446)

(20,243)

737,305

737,305

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was:
As at 31st March 2020
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Group

Balance at the beginning of the year
Impairment provision - recognised for the year
Written off during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Company

14,220

9,017

11,237

11,237

(11)
25,446

(11)
20,243

b) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Both the Group and Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 6.8 and Rs.6.7 million respectively as at
31 March 2020 (2019: Rs.12.1 million), which represents its maximum credit exposure on these assets. Cash
and cash equivalents are held with banks and financial institutions which are rated AA (lka) to A (lka), based on
Fitch Ratings.
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39.2.2 Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The group’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
to the Group’s reputation.
39.2.2.1 Exposure to Liquidity Risk

Group
The contractual maturity period of financial liabilities was as follows.

As at 31st March 2020
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Loans and Borrowings
Trade Payables
Other Payables
Amounts due to related parties
Bank Overdraft
Total

As at 31st March 2019
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Loans and Borrowings
Trade Payables
Other Payables
Amounts due to related parties
Bank Overdraft
Total

Total
Carrying
Amount

2 Months
or less

2-6 months

More Than
6 months

331,982

-

331,982

-

15,735

15,735

-

-

175,864

152,810

23,054

-

1,089

1,089

-

-

3,267

3,267

-

-

527,937

172,901

355,036

-

Total
Carrying
Amount

2 Months
or less

2-6 months

More Than
6 months

93,529

-

93,529

-

66,205

66,205

-

-

194,087

165,050

29,037

3,042

3,042

-

-

-

-

-

-

356,863

234,297

122,566

-

Total
Carrying
Amount

2 Months
or less

2-6 months

More Than
6 months

331,982

-

331,982

-

15,735

15,735

-

-

174,490

151,436

23,054

-

1,089

1,089

-

-

6,375

6,375

-

-

Company
As at 31st March 2020
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Loans and Borrowings
Trade Payables
Other Payables
Amounts due to related parties
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Bank Overdraft
Total

86

3,267-

3,267

-

-

532,938

177,902

355,036

-
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Total
Carrying
Amount

As at 31st March 2019
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Loans and Borrowings
Trade Payables
Other Payables
Amounts due to related parties
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Bank Overdraft
Total

2 Months
or less

2-6 months

More Than
6 months

93,529

-

93,529

-

66,205

66,205

-

-

192,766

164,932

27,834

-

3,042

3,042

-

-

6,301

6,301

-

-

-

-

-

-

361,843

240,480

121,363

-

39.2.2.2 Management of Liquidity Risk
The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company has access to approved
short-term financing facilities from commercial banks, if required.
The Company monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other receivables together with expected
cash outflows on trade and other payables and it is estimated that the maturity of trade receivables as at the
reporting date would occur in sufficient quantity and timing, given the historical trends, and currently available
information which would enable the Company to meet its contractual obligations.
The Company monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other receivables together with expected
cash outflows on trade and other payables. As at 31 March 2020, the expected cash flows from trade and
other receivables maturing within two months were Rs. 392.8 million (2019 – Rs. 499 million). This excludes the
potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.
As at 31st March 2020, the Company had approved overdraft facilities amounting to Rs. 52 million of which
Rs. 3.2 million was utilised. In addition, the Company has access to approved trade and short-term financing
facilities of Rs. 1,097 million from commercial banks, of which Rs. 120.3 million was utilised on the letter of
credits/guarantees as at 31st March 2020.
39.2.3 Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates that
would impact the Group’s income or the value of an investment in financial instruments. The objective of
managing market risk is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while
optimising returns.
39.2.3.1 Management of Market Risk
All borrowing rates are linked to AWPLR and SLIBOR. Hence, any movement will be in line with the market and
have a corresponding impact.
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39.2.4 Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate, due
to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company, as at the reporting date, does not hold financial instruments
denominated in currencies other than its functional or reporting currency hence is not exposed to currency risk
arising from the translation of such balances into the functional or reporting currency, which is Sri Lankan Rupees.
However, the Company engages in transactions associated with foreign currencies in its ordinary course of
operations, hence, to that extent is exposed to currency risk. A significant part of the Company’s raw material
purchases are imports contracted mainly in US Dollar terms and to a lesser extent in Sterling Pounds, Singapore
Dollars or Euro. A fluctuation in the exchange rates will have an impact over the amount realised in the local
currency. Operations concerned with the local counterparties do not carry a currency risk exposure, on the basis
that those are transacted in Sri Lanka Rupee terms.
The Company monitors fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and takes precautionary measures to revise selling
prices and quotations on a regular basis.
39.2.5 Interest rate risk
The Company’s interest-bearing financial assets / liabilities are factored on variable rates of interest, hence the
Company’s exposure to interest rate risk may be considered material.
The Group has borrowings with variable interest rates such as AWPLR and SLIBOR and would expose the Group
to cash flow/profits as the amount of interest paid would be changed depending on market interest rates.
Further, the global outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in a consecutive reduction in policy rates and
monetary easing policies by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka to encourage banks and finance companies to reduce
lending rates.
Profile
At the end of the reporting period the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments were as follows.
Group
For the Year ended 31st March,
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Variable rate instruments
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Overdraft
Total

2020

(331,982)
(3,267)
(335,249)

Company
2019

(93,529)
(93,529)

2020

(331,982)
(3,267)
(335,249)

2019

(93,529)
(93,529)

39.2.5.1 Cash flow sensitivity for variable rate instruments
A change of 1% in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would have increased/(decreased) equity and
profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.
Group
Profit/(Loss)
For the Year ended 31st March,
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Variable Rate Instruments
1% Increase in interest rate
1% Decrease in interest rate

88

2020

Company
Profit/(Loss)
2019

2020

2019

(3,352)

(935)

(3,352)

(935)

3,352

935

3,352

935
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Share Information
1. STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
Central Industries PLC is a public Listed Company (Reg. No. PQ 121) the issued ordinary shares of which are
listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange.
2. STATED CAPITAL
The Stated Capital of the Company as defined by the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 was Rs. 121.3 million as at
31st March 2020.										
3. SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 31ST MARCH 2020
No trading since 20th March 2020, as the Colombo Stock Exchange was closed due to the COVID - 19
Pandemic.
Shareholders as at 20th March 2020

Quantity

Issued Ordinary Shares
Shares held by the Parent Enterprise, Subsidiaries, Associates, Directors and
Shareholders whose holdings exceed 10%
Shares held by the public (In terms of the rule 7.13.1 (a) of the Listing Rules, the
Company qualifies under option five of the minimum public holding requirement)
Number of Public Shareholders

%

19,768,428
10,531,068

53.27

9,237,360

46.73

1,427

4. DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 31ST MARCH 2020
Residents
No. of
Share
Number of Shares held holders
1-1,000
1,001-5,000
5,001-10,000
10,001-50,000
50,001-100,000
100,001-500,000
500,001-1,000,000
Over 1,000,000
Total

90

No. of
Shares

861
220,575
318
771,737
97
716,513
111 2,282,546
12
990,851
10 1,900,495
2 1,148,201
3 11,267,354
1,414 19,298,272

Non- Residents
No. of
Share
% holders
1.12
3.90
3.62
11.55
5.01
9.61
5.81
57.00
97.62

7
7
2
3
0
1
0
0
20

No. of
Shares
2,881
16,799
14,000
76,476
360,000
470,156

Total
No. of
Share
% holders
0.01
0.08
0.07
0.39
1.82
2.38
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No. of
Shares

%

868
223,456
1.13
325
788,536
3.98
99
730,513
3.69
114 2,359,022 11.94
12
990,851
5.01
11 2,260,495 11.43
2 1,148,201
5.81
3 11,267,354 57.00
1,434 19,768,428 100.00

5. Twenty Largest Shareholders
2020
Name
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17
18
19
20

No. of Shares

Central Finance Company PLC A/C NO 03
Seylan Bank Ltd./Govindasamy Ramanan
CF Insurance Brokers (Pvt) Ltd.
Mr. J.D. Bandaranayake
Tivoli Lanka Ltd.
Mrs. V. Saraswathi
Mrs. C.A.D.S. Woodward
Seylan Bank PLC/S.R. Fernando
Alliance Finance Company PLC
Bansei Securities Capital (Pvt) Ltd/ D. Gangadharan
Acuity Partners (Pvt) Limited/Mr. Subramaniam
Vasudevan
Mr. P.P. Subasinghe
DFCC Bank PLC/L.C.A. Lankeshwara
Mr. V. Sivakumar
Mr. V. Sunilgavasker
Miss. N. Bandaranayake
Mrs. N.D. Palliya Guruge
Timex Garments (Pvt) Ltd.
Miss I. Bandaranayake
Seylan Bank PLC/Emile Joseph Gunesekera &
Michelle Geneieve Martha Gunasekera
Mr. N.A. Withana
DFCC Bank PLC/Mr. K.S.D. Senaweera

2019
% No. of Shares

%

8,709,000

44.06

8,709,000

44.06

1,429,154

7.23

1,397,153

7.07

1,129,200

5.71

1,129,200

5.71

664,506

3.36

238,109

1.20

614,400

3.11

614,400

3.11

533,801

2.70

-

-

360,000

1.82

360,000

1.82

248,561

1.26

-

-

200,000

1.01

200,000

1.01

171,017

0.87

-

-

136,618

0.69

-

-

135,268

0.68

160,258

0.81

122,099

0.62

-

-

117,426

0.59

-

-

105,000

0.53

98,920

0.50

100,000

0.51

100,000

0.51

100,000

0.51

100,000

0.51

100,000

0.51

100,000

0.51

99,632

0.50

99,632

0.50

93,162

0.47

-

-

90,420

0.46

-

-

82,000

0.41

-

-

15,341,264

77.60

13,068,563

66.12

6. SHARE TRADING DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
Highest Price – 29th November 2019
Lowest Price – 15th May 2019
Last Traded Price - 20th March 2020
No. of Traders
No. of Shares Traded
Value of the Shares Traded
Float Adjusted Market Capitalisation as at 20th March 2020

Rs. 59.00
Rs. 25.60
Rs. 32.80
6,152
6,136,370
Rs. 267,746,694
Rs. 302,999,394

7. KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
2019/20
Dividend per share (Rs.) – Cash Dividend - Rs. 2/– Scrip Dividend - Rs. 2/Dividend pay out
Net Assets per share(Rs.)
No. of Shares in issue

4.00
40.78%

2018/19
2.50
38.16%

89.80

82.45

19,768,428

19,768,428
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Five Year Summary
Year ended 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)
Income Statement
Gross Revenue
Profit Before Taxation
Income Tax Expenses
Profit for the Year
Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Property, Plant and equipment
Capital work-in-Progress
Intangible Assets
Total Current Assets
Total Assets
Equity and Liabilities
Share Capital
Reserves
Total Equity
Deferred Taxation
Retirement Benefit Obligation
Total Current Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities
Earnings Per Share (Rs.)
Net Asset Per Share (Rs.)

92

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

3,226,131

2,824,709

2,318,696

2,400,635

2,278,371

262,985

177,030

111,582

201,320

252,881

(69,080)

(47,535)

(28,280)

(62,291)

(72,647)

193,905

129,495

83,302

139,029

180,234

908,111

917,116

615,226

541,106

495,815
18,177

-

-

16,148

2,575

74

124

176

289

220

1,667,995

1,338,430

1,205,480

1,205,974

1,024,530

2,576,180

2,255,670

1,837,030

1,749,944

1,538,742

121,320

121,320

121,320

121,320

121,320

1,653,789

1,508,570

1,193,729

1,211,448

1,130,755

1,775,109

1,629,890

1,315,049

1,332,768

1,252,075

187,772

189,687

97,776

43,402

42,150

54,775

50,624

49,908

61,989

48,222

558,524

385,469

374,297

311,785

196,295

2,576,180

2,255,670

1,837,030

1,749,944

1,538,742

9.81

6.55

4.21

7.03

9.12

89.80

82.45

66.52

67.42

63.34
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Corporate Information
NAME OF COMPANY

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Central Industries PLC

Mr. I.M.P. Rupathunge

LEGAL FORM

HEAD OFFICE AND REGISTERED OFFICE

A Public Limited Liability Company Incorporated
in Sri Lanka.

No. 312, Nawala Road,
Rajagiriya, Sri Lanka.
Tel
: +94-11-2806623
: +94-11-2806622
Fax
E-mail : info@nationalpvc.com
Website : www.nationalpvc.com

DATE OF INCORPORATION
18th September 1984
COMPANY REGISTRATION
NUMBER

SECRETARIES
Corporate Services (Private) Limited
216, De Saram Place,
Colombo 10.

PQ 121
ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY
Central Finance Co. PLC

AUDITORS

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

KPMG, Chartered Accountants
32 A, Sir Mohamed Macan Markar Mawatha,
Colombo 03.

Central Industries Marketing (Pvt) Ltd.
(Reg. No. PV 571)
Polymer Technologies (Pvt) Ltd. (Reg. No. PV 2468)
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Notice of Meeting
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Thirty Eighth Annual General Meeting of Central Industries PLC be held at
Central Finance Company PLC, No. 268, Vauxhall Street, Colombo 02 on this 31st day of July 2020 at 4.00 p.m.,
for the following purposes:
1. To receive and consider the Annual Report of the Board together with the Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended 31st March 2020 and Report of the Auditors thereon.
2. To declare a final dividend as recommended by the board of directors and to consider and if thought fit, to
pass the following resolutions:
ORDINARY RESOLUTION - DISTRIBUTION OF A FINAL DIVIDEND FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH 2020
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED THAT
(i) a final dividend of Rupees Four (Rs. 4.00) per share constituting a total dividend of Rupees Seventy Nine
Million Seventy Three Thousand Seven Hundred and Twelve (Rs. 79,073,712) be paid on the issued and fully
paid shares of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2020.
(ii) the shareholders entitled to the final dividend would be those shareholders whose names have been duly
registered in the Register of Shareholders and those shareholders whose names appear on the Central
Depository Systems (Private) Limited (“CDS”) as at end of trading on the 31st July 2020 (the “Entitled
Shareholders”).
(iii) the said final dividend of Rupees Four (Rs. 4.00) per share be distributed partly by the payment of cash and
partly by the issue of new shares in the following manner:
(a)

a cash distribution of a sum of Rupees Two (Rs. 2.00) per share amounting to a total cash dividend
of Rupees Thirty Nine Million Five Hundred and Thirty Six Thousand Eight Hundred and Fifty Six
(Rs. 39,536,856);

(b)

a distribution of Rupees Two (Rs. 2.00) per share amounting to a total distribution of Rupees Thirty Nine
Million Five Hundred and Thirty Six Thousand Eight Hundred and Fifty Six (Rs. 39,536,856) in the form
of scrip dividends, by the issue of a maximum of Nine Hundred and Thirty Thousand Two Hundred and
Seventy Nine (930,279) new ordinary shares in the Company computed on the basis of the following
formula and issued at a consideration of Rupees Forty Two and Cents Fifty (Rs. 42.50) per each
new share.
Number of shares to be issued = Number of shares held as at
1
end of trading on the date x
21.24999919
of the Annual General Meeting

(iv) the number of shares to be eventually issued as scrip dividend shall depend on the number of residual
fractions arising from the scrip dividends after applying the aforesaid formula and the residual fractions
arising from the scrip dividend shall be disregarded in entirety and the value of such fractions (computed
on the basis of the aforesaid consideration for the shares to be issued) shall be paid by cheque to the
shareholders.
(v) the new shares to be issued by way of scrip dividend shall immediately consequent to the allotment thereof
to the entitled shareholders rank equal and pari passu in all respects with the existing issued and fully paid
ordinary shares of the Company and shall be listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange.
(vi) the new ordinary shares to be so allotted and issued shall not be eligible for the payment of the dividend
declared hereby.
(vii)accordingly, the management and secretaries of the Company be and are hereby authorised to attend to all
matters pertaining to the aforesaid final dividend inclusive of the proposed issue of new ordinary shares of
the Company by way of the scrip dividend.
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3. To propose the following resolution as an ordinary resolution for the reappointment of Mr. A.N.P.
Wickramasuriya who has reached the age of 78 years.
“IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the age limit referred to in section 210 of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007 shall
not apply to Mr. A.N.P.Wickramasuriya who has reached the age of 78 years prior to this Annual General
Meeting and that he be reappointed as a director of the Company”.
4. To propose the following resolution as an ordinary resolution for the reappointment of Mr. A.Hettiarachchy who
has reached the age of 71 years.
“IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the age limit referred to in section 210 of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007 shall
not apply to Mr. A.Hettiarachchy who has reached the age of 71 years prior to this Annual General Meeting
and that he be reappointed as a director of the Company”.
5. To propose the following resolution as an ordinary resolution for the reappointment of Ms. I.S.Jayasinghe who
has reached the age of 72 years.
“IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the age limit referred to in section 210 of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007 shall
not apply to Ms. I.S.Jayasinghe who has reached the age of 72 years prior to this Annual General Meeting
and that he be reappointed as a director of the Company”.
6. To re-elect Mr. G.S.N.Peiris a director who retires by rotation in terms of Article 85 of the Articles of Association
of the Company.
7. To re-elect Mr. D.T.R De Silva, who retires in terms of Article 91 of the Articles of Association and being eligible
has offered himself for re-election.
8. To re-appoint M/s KPMG, Chartered Accountants, as Auditors of the Company to hold office until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company at a remuneration to be agreed with by the
Board of Directors and to audit the Financial Statements of the Company for the accounting period ending
31st March 2021.
9. To authorise the Directors to determine contributions to charities for the ensuing year.

By Order of the Board,
(Sgd.)
Director
Corporate Services (Private) Limited
Secretaries
Central Industries PLC
Colombo on this 2nd day of July 2020

Note: Any member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy instead. A proxy need not be a member,
instruments appointing proxies must be lodged with the Company not less than 48 hours before the meeting.
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Form of Proxy
*I/We…………………………………………………………………………………………………….……………..…………
of………………………………………………………..…………………..............................................………….......……
being *a member/members of CENTRAL INDUSTRIES PLC do hereby appoint
1. Mr. G.S.N. Peiris				

or failing him,

2. Mr. E.H. Wijenaike				

or failing him,

3. Mr. A.N.P. Wickramasuriya			

or failing him,

4. Mr. C.S.W. De Costa				

or failing him,

5. Mr. A.K. Gunaratne				

or failing him,

6. Ms. I.S. Jayasinghe				

or failing her,

7. Mr. A. Hettiarachchy				

or failing him,

8. Mr. C.S. Hettiarachchi				
9. Mr. D.T.R. De Silva				

or failing him,
or failing him,				

……………………………………………………..........................………….………………………………………………of
……………………………………………………………………….........................…………………………………………
as *my/our Proxy to vote/speak for me/us on *my/our behalf at the 38th Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held at, No. 268, Vauxall Street, Colombo 02 on the 31st day of July 2020 at 4.00 p.m. and at any
adjournment thereof, and at every poll which may be taken in consequence thereof.
For

Against

1. To receive and consider the Annual Report of the Board together with the
Financial Statements of the Company
2. To approve a final dividend as authorized by the Directors
3. To re-appoint as a Director Mr. A.N.P. Wickramasuriya in terms of section 210
of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007
4. To re-appoint as a Director Mr. A. Hettiarachchy in terms of section 210 of the
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007
5. To re-appoint as a Director Ms. I.S. Jayasinghe in terms of section 210 of the
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007
6. To re-elect Mr. G.S.N. Peiris as a director who retires in terms of Article 85 of the
Articles of Association of the Company
7. To re-elect Mr.D.T.R De Silva who retires in terms of Article 91 of the
Articles of Association of the Company
8. To re-appoint M/s KPMG, Chartered Accountants, as Auditors of the Company
to hold office until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company at a remuneration to be agreed with by the Board of Directors and to
audit the Financial Statements of the Company for the accounting period ending
31st March 2021.
9. To authorise the Directors to determine contributions to charities
Signed this … day of ……… Two Thousand and Twenty.
........................................................
Signature/s
Note : Please delete the inappropriate words
Instructions as to completion are noted on the reverse hereof.
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INSTRUCTIONS AS TO COMPLETION
1. Kindly perfect the Form of Proxy after filling in legibly your full name and address and sign in the space
provided. Please fill in the date of signature.
2. A Member entitled to attend and vote/speak at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy who need not be a
member, to attend and vote instead of him.
3. In the case of a Corporate Member, the Form must be completed under its Common Seal or signed by its
attorney or by an officer on behalf of the corporation. The Company may, but shall not be bound to require
evidence of the authority of any such attorney or officer.
4. If the Form of Proxy is signed by an Attorney, the relevant Power of Attorney should also accompany the
completed Form of Proxy, in the manner prescribed by Articles of Association.
5. The completed Form of Proxy should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, No. 312, Nawala
Road, Rajagiriya not less than forty eight (48) hours before the appointed time for the Meeting.
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